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KRIEGEL/GRAY/SHAW & CO., P.C.
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
TRADITIONAL YET PROGRESSIVE SERVICE SINCE 1862

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Mr. Hector H. Balderas, Statec Audifor and
The Mayor and City Council

City of Grants

Grants, New Mexico

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Grants (the “City”), as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2009, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

We also have audited the financial statements of each of the City’s nonmajor governmental, nonmajor enterprise, and
fiduciary funds presented as supplementary information in the accompanying combining and individual fund financial
statements as of and for the year ended June 30, 2009, as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are
the responsibility of the City’s management. Our responsibility is fo express opinions on these financial statements
based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards, generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Goverrnment Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, ona
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions,

In our opinion, the financial statements referred fo above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial
position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the City of Grants, as of June 30, 2009, the respective changes in financial position and cash flows,
where applicable, thereof and the respective budgetary comparison of the General Fund and the Gasoline Road Tax
Fund for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. In addition, in our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of each nonmajor governmental and nonmajor enterprise fund of the City of Grants as
of June 30, 2009, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof and the
respective budgetary comparisons for the major capital projects fund, nonmajor governmental and enterprise funds for
the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

.
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Mor. Hector H. Balderas, State Auditor and
The Mayor and City Council

City of Grants

Grants, New Mexico

Page Two

Tn accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 18, 2009 on our
consideration of the City of Grants’ internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is
to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
testing and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in
assessing the results of our audit.

The management’s discussion and analysis on pages 4 through 11 is not a required part of the basic financial statements
but is supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the Unifed States of America.
We have applied certain limited procedures, which consist principally of inquiries of management regarding the
methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the
information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the basic financial statements, and combining and
individual fund financial statements and budgetary comparisons. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of
federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget
Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and is not a required part of the
financial statements. The Financial Data Schedule (FDS) is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by
the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, and is not a required part of the basic financial statements of
the City of Grants. The additional schedules listed as “other supplementary information™ in the table of contents are
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements. Such information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion,
is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the hasic financial statements taken as a whole.

Kl [y | S~ Co, £.C.

Kriegel/Gray/Shaw & Co., P.C.

November 18, 2009



CITY OF GRANTS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2009

As management of the City of Grants, we offer our residents and others who may read the City of Grants’ financial
staternents this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City of Grants for fiscal year ended June 30,
2009.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

¢ The City’s total net assets increased over the course of this year’s operations.

s During the year the City’s expenses were $3,922,254 less than the $13,223,804 generated in taxes and other
revenues for governmental programs.

¢ Inthe City’s business-type activities, revenues increased 14.6% to $7,076,690 while expenses increased 5.8%.

¢  The general fund reported a surplus this year of $445,537.

OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an iniroduction to the City of Grants’ basic financial statements. The
City of Grants’ basic financial statements consist of three separate components: 1} government-wide financiai statements: 2)
fund financial statements: and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary

information, including budgetary comparison information, in addition to the basic financial statements,

Certain items in the prior year financial statements have been reclassified for comparison purposes.

Governmental-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements include a statement of net assets with all government funds and account types.
In addition, a statement of activities for government activities and business activities are included.

The statement of net assets reports all financial and capital resources. The statement of net assets presents information on
all the City of Grants’ assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting. Over time increases or decreases in net
assels may determine whether the financial position of the City of Grants is improving or deteriorating.

The statements of accounts illustrate the statement of activities for the City of Grants. The statement of activities presents
information, which illustrates how the City’s net assets changed during the most recent fiscal year. Again, revenues and
expenses are recorded using the accrual basis of accounting. The statement of activities includes revenues from
governmental activities as well as business-type activities.

The City of Grants, also known as the primary government, is predominantly financed through taxes, intergovernmental
revenues, and other non-exchange revenues. These governmental activities include general government, public safety,
public works, health and welfare and cultural and recreation. These governmental activities are classified and reported in
governmental funds and special revenue funds. The business type activities are financed primarily from user fees charged
to external parties for goods and or services. These activities are reported in enterprise funds in our financial statements.
The City of Grants® business type activities include water and sewer systems, refuse, the City goif course, and housing,

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 12 through 13 of this report.



CITY OF GRANTS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2009

Fund Financial Statements

The City of Grants accounts for its finances through several fiscal and accounting entities called funds. We, like other state
and local governments use fund accounting to comply with state statutes regarding all finance-related transactions. The City
of Grants has created its respective funds to establish a measure of flow from financial resources and/or to determine net
income or net loss. These funds allow the City of Grants to manage its finances more effectively and more efficiently. The
City of Grants maintains the following categories of fund types: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary
funds,

Governmental Funds

The governmental funds for the City of Grants include the general fund, special revenue funds, capital projects funds, and
debt service funds. The governmental funds reporting focuses predominantly on the sources, uses, and balances of current
financial resources that have been established by an approved appropriated budget. The governmental funds provide a
detailed short-term view of the City’s general governiment operations and the basic services it provides. The financial
information contained in the governmental funds isuseful in helping determine whether or not there are sufficient financial
assets to provide funding for the City’s current programs.

Proprietary Funds

Proprietary funds are used to account for activities similar to those in the private sector and focuses on the determination of
operating income, changes in net assets, financial position, and cash flows. Proprietary funds are reported in the same
manner that all activities are reported in the Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Activities (revenues and expenses). In
fact, the City’s enterprise funds are the same as the business-fype activities that are reported in the government-wide
staterents; however, they provide more detail in regards to cash flows for proprietary funds. The City’s intent is that costs
of providing the goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis will be financed or recovered through user
charges. The City has the following enterprise funds: Utility Fund, Low Rent, Golf Course Operating Fund and Project
home,

Fiduciary Funds

Fiduciary fund reporting focuses on assets and liabilities that are held in a trustee or agency capacity for other government
agencies and therefore cannot be used to support the City’s own programs. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the
government-wide financial statement for the reason that their resources are not available to the City. Agency funds are
custodial in nature and do not involve measurement of results of operations.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The City’s notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is necessary for a better understanding of all
data that is illusirated in the government-wide and fund financial statements.



CITY OF GRANTS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2009

Government-Wide Financial Analysis

City of Grants
Summary of Net Assets

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

Assets:
Current assets and other assets $9,730,914 $8,643,316 $3,537,017 $2,837,878 313,267,931 $11,481,194
Capital 36,436,168 33,150,180 17,014,086 16,452,299 53,450,254 49,602,479

Total assets 846,167,082 $41,793,496 $20,551,103 $19,290,177 $66,718,185 $61,083,673
Liabilitics:
Current and other liabilities $1,081,637 $538,958 $993,958 $906,451  $2,075,595 31,445,409
Long-term liabilities 1,404,089 1,495,436 3,453,446 3944714 4,857,535 5,440,150

Total liabilities 2,485,726 2,034,394 4,447 404 4,851,165 6,933,130 6,885,559
Net Assets:
Invested in capital assets, net of
related debt 35,232,750 31,782,662 13,122,482 12,051,909 48,355,232 43,834,571
Restricted net assets 1,209,946 1,982,724 701,579 1,913,621 1,911,525 3,896,345
Unrestricted net assets 7,238,600 5,993,716 2,279,638 473,482 9,518,298 6,467,198

Total net assets 43,681,356 39,759,102 16,103,699 14,439,012 59,785,055 54,198,114

Total liabilities and nef assets $46,167,082 $41,793,496 820,551,103 $19,290,177 $66,718,185 $61,083,673

Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) make up 80.1% of the City’s total assets from governmental activities.
Investments in capital assets include: land, buildings, machinery and equipment, and infrastructure. The City of Grants
utilizes these assets to provide services to its citizens; therefore, these assets are not available for future spending.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Grants reported a positive balance in all three categories of net assets.

In evaluating the operating performances of an agency, the rate of return on assets is probably one of the most useful
measures of the entity’s profitability and efficiency. The return on assets ratio for the city is 8.4% for fiscal year ending
June 30, 2009. This ratio aids management in gauging the effectiveness of its use of assets.

In the Governmental activitics total liabilities have been increased by 22.2% due to an increase in accounts payable and the
settlement payable. Total assets have increased in 2009 due to the folowing factors. Taxes increased in 2009 by $91,495,
Grants and contributions increased by $3,622,173, and charges for services decreased by $20,412, Investment income
decreased in fiscal year 2009 due to a decrease in inferest rates. Administrative fees from the Utility Fund have increased
due to scheduled rate increases implemented. These factors primarily affect the increase in current assets in 2009 compared
to 2008.

Net assets for business-type activities have increased by $1,664,687, an increase of 11.5%. The increase is due primarily to

a five-year rate increase for water, wastewater and refuse implemented in fiscal year 2006-2007. Overall, liabilities were
reduced due to annual reductions in long-term debt. No additional debt was incurred in fiscal year 2009,

-6-



CITY OF GRANTS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2009

Financial Analysis of the City’s Major Funds

GENERAL FUND

The General Fund is the major operating fund for the City. The General Fund is the single largest fund pertaining to
revenues and expenditures. Total revenues in fiscal year 2008 were $7,707,688 and $7,907,865 in 2009, an increase of
$200,177 (2.6%) for comparative years. The difference is due to across the board increases in most line items as follows:

2009 2008

Taxes and State Shared Taxes $5,506,637 $5,387,054
Intergovernmental Revenue 608,398 525,503
Fees, Service Charges, Rental Revenue 1,176,715 1,082,000
Investment income 65,888 187,207
Franchise fees 314,095 330,711
License and permits 23,605 77,330
Total $7,695,338 $7,589,805

Difference: Increase from 2008 to 2009 $105,533.

Expenditures in the General Fund for fiscal year 2008 were $5,714,739 and $6,671,833 for fiscal year 2009, an increase of
$957,094 (16.7%). The increase was due primarily to an increase in expenses in 2009 in General Government of $988,034.
The majority of this increase results from the settlement payments made to various home owners for water seepage
problems of $668,330. The General Fund fund balance increased in 2009 in the amount of $445,537 with revenues
exceeding expenditures less transfers for an ending fund balance of $5,670,624 as of June 30, 2009.

GENERAL GOVERNMENT IMPROVEMENTS FUND

The General Government Improvements Fund accounts for the City’s capital outlay projects primarily funded from the state
legislative appropriations, federal grants, and City monies. In the fiscal year 2007/2008 the City accounted for $406,078 in
federal grant revenues and $1,307,084 in state grants for total grant revenues of $1,713,162. In fiscal year 2008/2009 the
total grant revenues of $3,055,304 consisted of federal grant revenues of $967,942 and state grant revenues of $2,087,362.

The revenues received by the City will fluctuate as a result of grant appropriations received from year to year. Fluctuations
will also occur when monies are expended and received annually.

Expenditures in fiscal year 2007/2008 were $1,593,532. The majority of the expenditures were incurred for the waste water
treatment plant, playground equipment, police vehicles, airport improvements, cemetery improvements, and various other
small equipment purchases. Expenditures in fiscal year 2008/2009 were $2,749,144 with an additional capital transfer out
of $1,606,571. The capital transfer was due to project Grants Funds expended and incurred in the General Government
Improvements Fund for the benefit of other funds. Expenditures were incurred for the City’s wastewater treatment plant,
animal shelter building, water tank improvements, park improvements, arts building renovations, judicial building
renovations, police vehicles, airport improvements, street drainage projects, and various other small equipment purchases.



CITY OF GRANTS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2009

UTHATY FUND

The Utility Fund is used to account for all water, sewer and refuse revenues and expenses. It is the major proprietary fund
for the City. Total operating revenues for 2007/2008 fiscal year was $5,181,974 and 85,499,305 for 2008/2009; an increase
of $317,331 (6.1%). The increase is due to implementation of a utility rate increase as a result of a utility rate study that
initially took place in January of 2007 and continued through January 2009, The decrease in net income for 2009 versus
2008 of $386,209 is due to a loss on an abandoned well project. Operating expenses increased in fiscal year 2008/2009
compared to 2007/2008 by $328,389, which is 7.6%.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The City of Grants fotal actual expenditures for fiscal year 2008/2009 were 3.6% under the budgeted expenditure amounts
for the year. Public safety is responsible for 31.4% and general government is responsible for 41.3% of the General Fund
expenditures,

The City’s total gross receipts tax amount for fiscal year 2008/2009 increased by 2.9% over fiscal year 2007/2008. Overall
gross receipts increases slowed down in relation to the overall economic slow down.

The City implemented a water and refuse rate increase in fiscal year 2007/2008. The approximate increase in 2008/2009
for water was 18% and the increase for refuse was 12%.

The variation between original and final budget amount pertains to an adjustment for settlements paid to home owners for
water seepage ($346,203).
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

JUNE 30, 2009

City of Grants
Summary of Changes in Net Assets

Governmental Business-fype
Activities Activities Total
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

Revenues:
Program Revenues:
Charges for sexvices $1,266,579 $1,286,991 $5,871,725 $5,479,614 §7,138,304  $6,7606,605
Operating grants and contributions 1,394,479 1,374,381 69,201 51,173 1,463,680 1,425,554
Capital grants and contributions 5,397,031 1,794,956 0 0 5,397,031 1,794,956
General Revenue:
Taxes 6,324,800 6,233,305 0 0 6,324,800 6,233,305
Investment income 94,589 254 404 41,953 71,972 136,542 326,376
Miscellaneous 265,647 184,757 (356,309) 2,969 {90,662) 187,726

Total revenue 14,743,125 11,128,794 5,626,570 5,605,728 20,309,695 16,734,522
Expenses:
General Government 4,440,375 2,965,609 i\ 0 4,440,375 2,965,669
Public Safety 2,521,524 2,398,220 0 0 2,521,524 2,398,220
Public Works 534,160 1,169,854 0 0 534,160 1,169,854
Health and Welfare 1,068,673 1,104,368 0 ] 1,068,673 1,104,368
Culture and Recreation 682,320 808,228 ] O 682,320 808,228
Interest and fees on long-term debt 54,498 58,828 0 0 54,498 58,828
Water, sewer and refuse 0 0 4,724,167 4,404,974 4,724,167 4,404,974
Golf 0 0 615,883 636,693 615,883 636,693
Rental 0 0 141,154 139,615 141,154 139,615

Total expenses 9,301,550 8,505,107 5,481,204 5,181,282 5,481,204 13,686,389
Increase in net assets before

transfers 5,441,575 2,623,687 145,366 424446 5,586,941 3,048,133

Transfers (1,519,321) {629,609) 1,519,321 629,609 0 1t
Change in Net Assels 3,922,254 1,994,078 1,004,687 1,054,055 5,586,941 3,048,133
Net Assets - July 1, 2008 and 2007 39,759,102 37,765,024 14439012 13384957 54,198,114 51,149 98I
Net Assets - June 30 $43,081,356 $39,759,102 $16,103,699 $14,439,012 $59,785,055 $54,198,114




CITY OF GRANTS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2009

Government Activities

Revenue received from program and general activities was predominantly less than expenses for fiscal year 2009, with the
exception of capital grants where amounts expended have been capitalized and the donation of a $1,300,000 building for
use as a library.,

Business-Type Activities

Business-type activities income before transfers increased the City’s net assets by $145,366. Increases in charges for
services were responsible for this increase.

Financial Analvsis of the City’s Funds

As mentioned earlier, the City of Grants uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related
legal requirements. As of the end of current fiscal year, the City of Grants governmental funds reported combined ending
balances of $9,753,120, which is an increase from the prior year ending fund balances. The City’s proprietary funds
provide the same type of information found in the government-wide financial statement, but in more detail. The business-
type activities have demonstrated sufficient revenue and sufficient cash flow to guarantee that all expenditures, including
long-term debt will be paid in a timely manner,

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital Assels

The City of Grants net capital assets for its govermment type activities as of June 30, 2009 amounted to $36,436,168. This
investment in capital assets includes land improvements, building improvements, vehicles, machinery and equipment, and
infrastructure. The most significant impact on capital assets during the year resulted from the following:

Wastewater-Treatment Plant Improvements
Animal Shelter Building
Water Tank Renovation
Street Improvements and Drainage Projects
Donation of a Building for use as a Library

* & & o »

Long-term Debt

The City’s total debt (excluding compensated absences and lease payable) as of June 30, 2009 is $5,049,161, which
decreased by $614,360, which represents payments of outstanding debt. The majority of this amount is due to the
outstanding loan amount of $3,335,743 that was from the New Mexico Environmental Department, for construction and
acquisition of equipment for a wastewater treatment plant facility previously constructed in 1992,

More detailed information regarding these activities and funds is included in Note 5.

The City of Grants issued no new long-term debt during the current fiscal year. The City has no general obligation bonds
outstanding at June 30, 2009.

-10-
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2009

Economic Factors

The City of Grants base gross receipts taxes which is the City’s largest resource increased by 10.9% from fiscal year
2005/20006 to fiscal year 2006/2007, 2% from fiscal year 2006/2007 to fiscal year 2007/2008, 2% from fiscal year
2007/2008 to fiscal year 2008/2009. The prior growth trend has slowed significantly. The curent year shows a continued
slow down in relation to the overall economy.

The City has completed a utility rate structure study done by an engineering firm in order to enable the City to solidify their
utility fund. The City implemented the rate increases in the Utility Fund in March 2007, The City makes every effort
possible to ensure that the resources available are maximized to provide services to the public.

City of Grants
Outstanding Bonds and Liabilities to Financial Institutions

Governmental Business-iype Total
Activities Activities Activities
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
Revenue Bonds $685,000 $810,000 $510,000 $625,000 $1,195,000 $1,435,000
General Obligation Bonds 0 0 0 0 0 0
Notes Payabie 518,418 557,518 3,335,743 3,671,003 3,854,161 4,228,521
Capital Leases 0 0 45,859 104,387 45,859 104,387
Total $1,203,418 81,367,518 $3,891,602 $4,400,390 85,095,020 $5,767,908

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Grants® finances for those interested in the
government finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in the report or request for additional financial
information should be addressed to the City of Grants, City Manager at 600 West Santa Fe Avenue, Grants, New Mexico
87020,

-11-
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STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2009

Primary Government
Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities Total
Assets
Cash and invesiments $6,371,358 $1,773,916 $8,145,274
Cash held with trustee 490,653 0 490,653
Investments 602,490 211,808 814,298
Grant revenue receivable 585,459 G 595,459
Accounts receivable, net 164,303 565,481 729,784
State taxes receivable 1,478,708 c 1,478,708
Property taxes receivable 16,394 0 16,394
Interest receivable 0 177 177
Internal balances (7,127) 7,127 0
Inventories 0 72,092 72,092
Other assels 18,676 0 18,676
Restricted Assets:
Cash - loan reserve environmental division 0 701,517 701,517
Cash - customer deposits 0 204,899 204,899
Capital Assets:
Capital assets not depreciated 5,656,038 3,502,602 9,158,641
Capital assets, depreciated 41,890,548 32,534,247 74,424,795
Accumulated depreciation {11,110,419) (18,022,763}  (30,133,182)
Total capital assels 36,436,168 17,014,086 53,450,254
Total assels 46,167,082 20,551,103 66,718,185
Liahilities
Accounts payable 437,420 242,064 679,484
Accrued payrol 149,993 33,441 183,434
Customer deposits 0 208,309 208,309
Settlement payable 325,000 0 325,000
Prepaid rents 0 2,320 2,320
Long-term liabilities:
Due within one year 169,224 507,824 677,048
Due in more than one year 1,404,089 3,453,446 4,857 535
Total lfabilities 2,485,726 4,447 404 6,933,130
Net Assets
Investad in capilal assets, net of related debt 35,232,750 13,122,482 48,355,232
Restricted for
Debt service 631,408 701,517 1,332,925
Capital projects 578,538 0 578,538
Customer deposits 0 62 62
Unrestricted (deficit) 7,238,660 2,279,638 9,518,298
Total net assets $43,681,356 $16,103,699 $59,785,055

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.

12-



CITY OF GRANTS
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Program Revenues

Net {Expense) Revenua and Changes in Net Assels

QOperating Capital Primary Government
Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-type
Functions/Pragrams Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Aclivities Activities Total
Primary Government
Governmental Activities:
General goverament $4,440,375 $264,374 $230,805 $0 {$3,945,196) 30 ($3,945,198)
Public safely 2,621,524 24,625 219,888 0 (2,277,091} o {2,277.011)
Public works 534,160 905,284 0 4,040,368 4,411,492 0 4,411,492
Health and welfare 1,068,673 35,802 825,730 56,663 {50,388} 1) {60,388}
Cultural and recreational 682,320 36,404 18,056 1,380,000 672,140 0 672,140
Interest and fees on
tong-term debt 54,498 0 4] 0 (54,498) 1] {54,498)
Tolal governmenta! aclivities 9,301,550 1,266,579 1,394,478 5,397,031 {1.243,461) {1,243,461)
Business-Type Activities:
Water, sewer and refuse 4,724,167 5,499,305 0 4] 0 775,138 775,138
Golf 615,883 315,759 ] ] hl {300,124} (300,124)
Rental 141,154 56,661 69,201 1] 1] (15,292} {15,202}
Tolal business-type aclivilies 5,481,204 5,871,725 69,201 4] ] 459,722 459,722
Total primary governiment $14,782,754 $7,138,304 $1,463,680 $5,307,031 131,243,461} $459,722 {$783,739)
General Revenues
Taxes:
Gross recelpisfstate shared $5,164,804 $0 $5,164,884
Property 459,009 ] 459,009
Lodgers' tax 386,812 0 386,812
Franchise tax 314,005 ¢] 314,095
Investment income 94,589 41,953 136,542
Other 346,672 5,483 352,065
Loss on assef disposals {80,925} {361,792} {442,717}
Operating transfers, net 87,250 {87,250} ¢
Capital fransfers, net (1,606,571} 1,606,671 o]
Total general revenues and fransfers 5,185,716 1,204,965 8,370,680
Change in net assets 3,022,254 1,664,687 5,586,941
Net agsets (deficit), beginning of year, 39,759,102 14,439,012 54,198,114
Net assels {deficit), end of year $43,681,356 $16,103,699 $59,785,055

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statemenits.
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CITY OF GRANTS
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

BALANCE SHEETS
JUNE 30, 2009

Major Funds

General Noenmajor Total
General Gasoline Government Governmental Governmental
Fund Road Tax Improvements Funds Funds
ASSETS
Pooled cash and investments $4,656,368 $608,799 $349,216 $756,975  $6,371,358
Cash held with trustee 0 0 0 490,653 490,653
investments 602,490 0 0 H] 602,490
Accounts receivable, net allowance 966,754 660,000 506,660 131,450 2,254,864
Due from other funds 30,000 0 0 3,755 33,755
Total assets $6,245,612  $1,268,799 $855,876  $1,382,833  $9,753,120
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $94,403 $56,758 $276,938 $9,321 $437.420
Accrued payroll 146,385 4] 0 3,608 149,993
Due to other funds 9,200 0 0 31,682 40,882
Setilement payable 325,000 0 0 0 325,000
Total lfabilities 574,988 56,758 276,938 44,611 953,285
Fund Balances:
Reserved for:
Capital projects 0 0 578,938 ¢] 578,938
Debt service - principal and interest 0 a 0 631,408 631,408
Unreserved reported in:
General fund 5,670,624 0 0 0 5,670,624
Special revenue funds 0 1,212,041 0 706,814 1,918,855
Total fund balance 5,670,624 1,212,041 578,938 1,338,222 8,799,825
Total liabilities and fund balance $6,245612  $1,268,799 $855,876 $1,382,833  $9,753,120

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS

RECONCILIATION OF THE FUND BALANCE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2009

FUND BALANCE of Governmental Funds $8,799,825

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore,

are not reported in the funds. 36,436,168
Some liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current period
and therefore, are not reported in the funds, (1,573,313)
Bond issuance costs are capitalized and amortized and therefore, are not expensed
($46,696 capitalized and $28,020 amortized). 18,676
Net assets of governmental activities $43,681,356

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Major Funds
General Nonmajor Total
General Gascline Government  Governmental Governmental
Fund Road Tax  Improvements Funds Funds

REVENUES
Infergovernmental revenue $608,398 $985,064  $3,0565,304 $810,344  $5,450,110
Taxes 3,300,060 113,113 0 4,143 3,417,316
State shared taxes 2,208,577 0 0 0 2,208,577
Lodgers' tax 17,000 0 0 369,812 386,812
Licenses and permits 23,605 0 0 0 23,605
Franchise tax 314,095 0 0 0 314,095
Other subsidies 32,400 0 0 0 32,400
Fees, service charges, and rental revenue 1,176,715 0 18,920 47,339 1,242,974
investment income 65,888 5,716 0 22,985 94,589
Sale of property 24,585 0 Y 16,390 40,975
Miscellaneous 138,542 0 133,333 33,720 305,595

Total revenues 7,907,865 1,103,893 3,207,557 1,304,733 13,524,048
EXPENDITURES
Current:

General government 3,119,254 76,032 0 326,048 3,621,334

Public safety 2,000,384 0 0 344,167 2,344 551

Public works 521,572 0 0 4,800 526,372

Health and welfare 360,036 0 0 591,837 951,873

Cultural and recreational 670,587 0 0 51 670,638
Capital outlay 0 428,752 2,749,144 43,424 3,221,320
Debt Service:

Principal 0 0 0 164,100 164,100

interest and other charges 0 0 0 46,565 46,565

Fees 0 0 0 3,263 3,263

Total expenditures 6,671,833 504,784 2,749,144 1,624,255 11,450,016
Revenues over (under) expenditures 1,236,032 599,109 458,413 {219,522) 2,074,032
Other Financing Sources {Uses):
Transfers in 389,409 300,000 700,000 547,316 1,936,725
Transfers out (1,179,904) 0 0 (669,571) (1,849,475)
Capital transfer out 0 0 {1,606,571) 0 {1,606,571)

Total other financing souirces {(uses) {790,495) 300,000 {906,571) {122,2558)  (1,516,321)
Net changess in fund balances 445,637 899,109 (448,158) {341,777) 554,711
FUND BALANCE
Fund balance, July 1 5,225,087 312,932 1,027,096 1,679,909 8,245,114
Fund balance, June 30 $5,670,624  $1,212,041 $578,938 $1,338,222  $8,799,825

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE OF
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Net change in fund balances - Governmental Funds $554,711
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of aclivities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of activities,

the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense.

This is the amount by which capital outlay {$3,221,320) exceeded depreciation {$1,154,407)

donated assets of $1,300,000, and disposal of assets with a net book value of ($80,923). 3,285,990

Repayment of bond and notes payable principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the
repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets. 164,100

Some expenses (or reduction thereof) reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use
of current financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in governmentat funds -

accrued compensated absences. (77.877)
Bond issuance cosis are amortized. (4,670)
Change in net assets of governmental activities $3,922,254

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS

GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL (CASH BASIS)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Original Final
Approved Approved Favorable
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

REVENUES
Taxes $2,458,912 $2,458,912 $2,836,522 $377,610
State shared taxes 2,332,125 2,332,125 2,717,060 384,935
Franchise fees 275,200 275,200 316,280 41,080
Fine and forfeits 100,000 100,000 24,361 (75,639)
Licenses and permits 19,500 19,500 23,605 4,105
Intergovernmental revenue 489,926 489,926 623,672 133,746
Fees and service charges 852,250 852,250 1,107,558 255,308
Donations 500 500 0 {500)
Investment income 15,000 15,000 83,975 68,975
Sale of property 14,000 14,000 24,585 10,585
Other revenue 26,747 26,747 138,543 111,796

Total revenues 6,584,160 6,584,160 7,898,161 1,312,001
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government 2,433,180 2,779,443 2,633,247 146,196
Public safety 2,153,867 2,153,867 2,004,732 149,135
Public works 708,184 708,184 698,175 10,009
Cultural and recreational 592,301 592,301 664,335 {72,034)
Health and welfare 367,994 367,994 361,403 6,591
Capital outlay 8,500 8,500 6,859 1,641

Tolal expenditures 6,264,026 6,610,289 6,368,751 241,538
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 320,134 (26,129) 1,527,410 1,563,539
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Operating transfers in 50,000 396,263 389,409 {G,854)
Operating transfers {out) (1,179,205 (1,179,805) (1,179,904) 1

Total other financing sources (uses) {1,129,905) (783,642) {790,495) {6,853)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures

and other financing sotrces (uses) (809,771) (809,771) $736,915 $1,546,686
Budgeted cash carryover 809,771 809,771

$0 30

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
GASOLINE ROAD TAX FUND
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL (CASH BASIS)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Qriginal Final Favorable
Approved Approved {Unfavorable)
Budget Budget Actual Varkance

REVENUES
intergovernmental $1,001,000  §1,001,000 $325,064 ($675,936)
Taxes 105,000 105,000 113,113 8,113
Interest on investments 0 0 5717 5717
Miscellaneous revenue 0 0 0 0

Tolal revenues 1,108,000 1,106,000 443,894 (662,1086)
EXPENDITURES
Personnel 75,216 75,216 49,143 26,073
Operating 0 0 0 0
Capital outlay 1,507,800 1,507,800 398,883 1,108,917

Total expenditures 1,683,016 1,583,018 448,026 1,134,990
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expendifures (477,016) (477,0186) {4,132) 472,884
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Operating transfers in 300,000 300,000 300,000 0
Operating transfers {(out) 0 0 0 0

Total other financing sources (uses) 300,000 300,000 300,000 0
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and
other financing sources (uses) {177,016) {177,016) $295,868 $472,884
Budgeted cash carryover 177,016 177,016

$0 $0

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF FUND NET ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2009

Nonmajor
Proprietary
Utilities Funds Total
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $1,672,974 $100,942 $1,773,916
Investments 0 211,808 211,808
Accounts receivable - other 0 46,022 46,022
Accounts receivable - tenants 0 4,899 4,899
Accounts receivable, water and sewer {net of allowance) 514,560 0 514,560
Interest receivable 0 177 177
Inventory 72,092 0 72,092
Due from other funds 0 34,199 34,199
Total current assels 2,259,626 398,047 2,657,673
Non-Current Assets
Restricted Assets:
Cash - debt reserves 701,517 0 701,817
Cash - customer deposits 204,899 0 204,899
Total restricted assets 906,416 0 906,416
Capital Assets:
Capital assets - not depreciated 3,369,282 133,320 3,502,602
Capital assets - depreciated 29,636,660 2,897,587 32,534,247
Less accumulated depreciation {17,701,342) {1,321,421) (19,022,763}
Net capital assels 15,304,600 1,709,486 17,014,086
Total assets 18,470,642 2,107,533 20,678,175
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable 226,498 15,566 242,064
Accrued payroll 13,880 19,561 33,441
Tenant securily deposits/utility deposits 204,837 3,472 208,309
Prepaid rents 0 2,320 2,320
Due to other funds 0 27,072 27,072
Current portion of long-term debt 461,965 45,859 507,824
Total current liabilities 907,180 113,850 1,021,030
Non-Current Liabilities:
Long-term debt 3,383,778 0 3,383,778
Compensated absences 30,367 39,301 69,668
Leases payable 0 0 0
Total noncurrent liabilities 3,414,145 39,301 3,453,446
Total liabilities 4,321,325 153,151 4,474,476
Net Assets:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 11,458,855 1,663,627 13,122,482
Restricted for debt service 701,517+ 0 701,517
Restricted for customer deposits 62 0 62
Unrestricted 1,988,883 290,755 2,279,638
Total net assets $14,149,317 $1,954,382 $16,103,699

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Nonmajor
Proprietary
Utitities Funds Total

OPERATING REVENUES
Water, sewer and refuse sales $5,499,305 50 35,499,305
Golf fees 0 315,759 315,759
Rental income 0 56,661 56,661

Total operating revenues 5,499,305 372,420 5,871,725
OPERATING EXPENSES
Operating expenses 4,044,376 653,730 4,698,106
Depreciation 587,367 103,307 690,674

Total operating expenses 4,631,743 757,037 5,388,780

Net income {ioss) from operations 867,562 (384,617) 482,945
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Federal grants and subsidies 0 69,201 69,201
Interest earnings 34,590 7,363 41,853
Interest expense {90,862) 0 (90,862)
Other gain {loss) (361,792) 0 {361,792)
Other miscellaneous income 5,354 129 5,483
Other debt expense {1,562) 0 (1,662)

Total non-operaling revenues (expenses} (414,272) 76,693 (337,579)

Net income (loss} before contributions and transfers 453,290 {307,924) 145,366
Cperating transfers in 1,020,316 325,400 1,345,716
Operating transfers {out) (1,432,966) 0 (1,432,9686)
Capital transfers in 1,489,002 117,569 1,606,671
Capital transfers (out) 0 0 0

Change in nel assels 1,529,642 135,045 1,664,687
Total fund net assets, at beginning of year 12,619,675 1,819,337 14,439,012
Total fund net assets, at end of year $14,149,317 $1,954,382 $16,103,699

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS

PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Nonmajor
Proprietary
Utilities Funds Total

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash received from customers (including other funds) $5,484,978 $328,696 $5,813,674
Cash paid to suppliers (3,624,763) (276,283)  (3,901,048)
Cash paid to employees {338,080) (355,996) {694,076)

Netl cash provided (used) by operating activities 1,622,135 (303,583) 1,218,652
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Advances (to} from other funds 0 (4,937) (4,937)
Transfers In (out) {412,650) 325,400 {87,250)

Net cash provided (used) by noncapital financing activities {412,650) 320,463 {92,187)
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of property and equipment (5,354) (2,328) (7,682)
Disposition of assels 0 0 0
Principal paid: revenue bondsf{lease purchase/advances {450,260) {58,529) {508,789)
Purchase of investments 0 {11,808) {(11,808)
Grants and subsidies 0 69,201 69,201
Interest paid: revenue bonds/lease purchasefadvances 0 0 0
Other gain (loss) 5,354 129 5,483
Other debt expense (1,561) 0 {1,561)
Due from other funds 0 0 0

Net cash provided {used} by capital and related financing activities {451,821) (3,335) (455,156)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Interest received {56,272) 12,073 {44,199)
Net increase (decrease) in pooled cash 601,392 25,618 627,010
Poocled cash and investments, beginning of year 1,977,998 75,324 2,053,322
Pooled cash and investments, end of year $2,579,380 $100,942 $2,680,332
Cash and cash equivalents $1,672,974 $100,942  $1,773,916
Restricted cash 906,416 0 906,416
Tofal cash $2,5679,380 $100,942 $2,680,332
Non Cash Transactions:
Capital assets transferred in $1,489,002 $117,569 $1,606,571

The Notes to Financial Statemenis are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS

PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Nenmajor
Proprietary
Utilities Funds Total
Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided
(used) by operating activities
Operating income (loss) $867,562 ($384,617) $482,045
Adjustments to reconclle operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 587,367 103,307 690,674
Provision for uncallectible accounts 0 0 0
Book vaiue of assets transferred 0 0 0
Change In assets and liabilities:
{increase) Decrease in assets:
Accounts receivable 8,749 (45,771) (37,022)
Due from/(to) other funds 0 0 0
Inventories (23,074) 0 (23,074)
Prepaids 0 0 0
Increase {Decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts and contracts payable 62,281 10,386 72,667
Wages payable 1,610 4,599 6,209
Compensated absences 7,235 6,502 13,737
Other deferred charges: Tenant deposits 10,405 (35) 10,370
Tenanis prepaid rent 0 2,046 2,046
Total adjustments 654,573 81,034 735,607
Net cash provided (used} by operating activities $1,522,135 ($303,583)  $1,218,552

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES - AGENCY FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2009

Agency
Funds
ASSETS
Cash, cerlificates of deposits and investments $25,296
Total assels $25,296
LIABILITIES
LIABILITIES
Due to others $25,296
Total liabilities $25,296

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.

-24-



CITY OF GRANTS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2009

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Description and Reporting Entity

The municipality was originally incorporated in the year 1941 as the Town of Grants, On October 20, 1966, an ordinance
was adopted pursuant to Section 14-1-3, New Mexico Statutes, 1952 Annotated, as amended proclaiming the Town as City
of Grants (the “City”) effective December 1, 1966. The City operates under a Council-Manager form of government and
provides the following services as authorized by its charter: Public Safety - (Police, Fire, and Emergency Ambulance),
Highways and Streets, Sanitation, Health and Social Services, Culture-Recreation, Water and Sewer Facilities, Housing
Public Improvements, Planning and Zoning, and General Administrative Services. The City operates the following
enferprises: water, sewer, public housing, and a golf course.

The financial statements of the City have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America as applied to government units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASBY} is the
accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statement. Estimates also affect the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates,

The more significant of the City’s accounting policies are described below.

Reporting Entity

In evaluating how to define the City, for financial reporting purposes, management has considered all potential component
units. The decision to include a potential component unit in the reporting entity was made by applying the criteria set forth
in GASB 14. The basic-but not the only-criterion for including a potential component unit within the reporting entity is the
governing body’s ability to exercise oversight responsibility. The most significant manifestation of this ability is financial
interdependency. Other manifestations of the ability to exercise oversight responsibility include, but are not limited to, the
selection of governing authority, the designation of management, the ability to significantly influence operations, and
accountability for fiscal matters, A second criterion used in evaluating potential component units is the scope of public
service. Application of this criterion involves considering whether the activity benefits the City and/or its citizens, or
whether the activity is conducted within the geographic boundaries of the City and is generally available to its citizens. A
third criterion used fo evaluate potential component units for inclusion or exclusion from the reporting entity is the existence
of special financing relationships, regardiess of whether the City is able to exercise oversight responsibilities.

Based upon the application of these criteria, the City of Grants Housing Authority is the only component unit, which has
been blended with the other funds of the City in the special revenue funds (Housing Capital Funds Program and Housing
Authority Vouclhers) and enterprise funds (Low Rent and Home Program). The Housing Authority Board is appointed by
the City Council.
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CITY OF GRANTS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2009
NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Basis of Presentation, Basis of Accounting

Government-Wide Statements — The statement of net assets and the statement of activities display information about the
primary government {the City). These statements include the financial activities of the overall government, except for
fiduciary fund activities. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double-counting of internal activities. These
statements distinguish between the governmental and business-type activities of the City. Governmental activitics generally
are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other nonexchange transactions. Business-type activities are
financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties.

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for the different business-
type activities of the City and for each function of the City’s governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are
specifically associated with a program or function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function. Indirect
expense allocations that have been made in the funds have been reversed for the statement of activities. Program revenues
include (a) fees, fines, and charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by the programs and (b) grants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are
not classified as program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general revenues.

Fund Financial Statements — The fund financial statements provide information about the City’s funds, including its
fiduciary funds. Separate statements for each fund category (governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary) are presented. The
emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate column.
All remaining governmental and enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds.,

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions associated with the
principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in which each party receives and gives up essentially equal
values. Nonoperating revenues, such as subsidies and investment earnings, result from nonexchange transactions or
ancillary activities.

The City reports the general fund as a major governmental fund:

Primary Operating Fund — It accounts for all financial resources of the general government, except those required to be
accounted for in another fund.

The City reports the following major funds:

General Government Improvements Fund — Accounts for construction and improvements funds received from various
sources for the improvement of City properties.

Enterprise — Utilities fund accounts for the provision of water, sewer, and refuse services to the residents of the City. All
activities necessary to provide such services are accounted for in this fund, including but not limited to, administration,
operation, maintenance, financing and related debt service, and billing and collection,

Agency Funds — are used to account for monies held by the City in a custodial capacity. They do not report operations or
have a measurement focus.

Gasoline Road Tax — To account for state funds for maintenance of roads. Authorized as a special revenue fund by city
resolution and NMSA 7-1-6.9.
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CITY OF GRANTS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2009
NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting

Government-Wide, Proprietary, and Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements - the government-wide, proprictary, and fiduciary
fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus. The government-wide and
proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the accrual basis of accounting, Revenues are recorded when eared
and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place.
Nonexchange transactions, in which the City gives (or receives) value without divectly receiving (or giving) equal value in
exchange, include property taxes, grants, entitlements, and donations. On an accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is
recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from sales taxes and franchise taxes are recognized if
they are collected within sixty days after year-end. These derived tax revenues are recognized when the underlying
transaction takes place (when the retail sale is generated). Revenue from grants, entitlements, and donations are recognized
in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements - Governmental funds are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized when
measurable and available. The City considers all revenues reported in the governmental funds to be available if the revenues
are collected within sixty days after year-end. Property taxes, sales taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest are
considered to be snsceptible to accrual. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for
principal and interest on general long-term debt, claims and judgments, and compensated absences, which are recognized as
expenditures to the extent they have matured. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in
governmental funds.

Under the terms of grant agreements, the City funds certain programs by a combination of specific cost-reimbursement
grants, categorical block grants, and general revenues. Thus, when program expenses are incurred, there are both restricted
and unrestricted net assets available to finance the program. It is the Cily’s policy to first apply cost- reimbursement grant
resources to such programs, followed by categorical block grants, and then by general revenues.

All governmental and business-type activities and enterprise funds of the City follow FASB Statements and Interpretations

issued on or before November 30, 1989, Accounting Principles Board Opinions, and Accounting Research Bulleting, unless
those pronouncements conflict with GASB pronouncements,
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

The City Council adopts an annual budget for the General, Special Revenue, Capital Projects, Enterprise, and Debt Service
Funds, which are prepared by management and approved by the City Council and by the Local Government Division of the
Department of Finance and Administration.

These budgets are prepared on the non-GAAP cash basis, excluding encumbrances, and secure appropriation of funds for
only one year. Carryover funds must be re-appropriated in the budget of the subsequent fiscal year, Because the budget
process in the State of New Mexico requires that the beginning cash balances be appropriated in the budget of the
subsequent fiscal year, such appropriated balance is legally restricted and is therefore used in the calculation to determine
the balance,

Actual expenditures may not exceed the budget on a fund basis, i.e. budgeted expenditures must be within budgeted
amounts, Budgets may be amended in two ways. All budget transfers that will exceed a cumulative of five percent of a
department’s total budget require approval from the Local Governmental Division of the Department of Finance and
Administration. Transfers, which do not exceed the five percent limit, require approval by the City Council, Resolutions for
budget increases will only be approved in the event of an emergency.

The budgets for the Housing Authority follow HUD requirements in that certain programs are not budgeted (HOME
program) and other program budgets are guidelines only and therefore, budgets are not amended.

The budgetary information presented in these financial statements has been amended in accordance with the above
procedures.

The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements:

Prior to June 1, the City submits a proposed budget to the Local Government Division of the Department of Finance and
Administration. The budget submitted has been approved by the City Council after presentation by the City Manager. The
operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing them.

The Locat Government Division, in relation to the City, shall:

a. Examine each proposed budget, and on or before July 1 of each year, approve and certify to the City an
operating budget for use pending approval of final budget.

b. Hold public hearings on proposed budgets.

c. Make such corrections; revisions, and amendments to proposed budgets as may be necessary to meet the
requirements of Taw.

d. Certify a final budget for the City prior to the first Monday in September of each year. Such budgets, when
approved, shall he binding upon all tax officials of the State.
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

e,

h.

Upon the approval of the Secretary of Finance and Administration, authorize the transfer of funds from one
budget item to another budget item when such transfer is required or an emergency condition exists meriting
such transfer and such transfer is not prohibited by law. In case of emergency necessitating the expenditures for
item or items not provided for in the budget, upon approval of the Secretary of Finance and Administration, the
budget may be revised to authorize such expenditures.

With written approval of the Secretary of Finance and Administration and the Attorney General, increase the
total budget of the City in the event the City undertakes an activity, service, project, or construction program
which was not contemplated at the time the final budget was adopted and approved and which activity, service,
project, or construction program will produce sufficient revenue to cover such increase in the budget or the
City has surplus funds on hand not necessary to meet the expenditures provided for in the budget with which to
cover such increase in the budget.

Supervise the disbursement of funds to the end that expenditures will not be made in excess of budgeted items
or for items not budgeted, and that there will not be illegal expenditures.

Prescribe the form for all budgets, books, records, and accounts for the City.
With the approval of the Secretary of Finance and Administration, make rules and regulations relating to

budgets, records, reports, handling and disbursement of public funds, or in any manner relating to the financial
affairs of the City.

The City Manager is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts between departments within any fund; however, any revisions
that alter the total expenditures of any fund must be approved by the City Council and the Local Government Division of
the Department of Finance and Administration (DFA). Unexpended budget appropriations lapse at year-end.

Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control devise during the year for the General Fund, Special
Revenue Funds, Debt Service Funds, and Capital Projects Fund.

Assets Liabilities and Equity

Cash Equivalents

The City pools idle cash from all funds for the purpose of increasing income through investment activities, A “Pooled Cash”
concept is used in maintaining the cash and investment accounts in the accounting records. Under this method, all cash is
pooled for investment purposes and each fund has equity in the pooled amount.
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NOTE 1, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments

The City’s investments are regulated by state law, as well as by guidelines and rules promulgated by the State Investment
Council and the State Treasurer. All investments are generally highly liquid in nature and are integrated with cash on the
financial statements with appropriate disclosure. Investments are stated at fair value, which is determined using selected
bases. Certificates of deposit are reported at carrying amount, which reasonably estimates fair value. Additional cash,

mvestment information, and fair values are presented in Note 2,

The City participates in the State Treasurer Local Government Investment Pool. This pool is regulated by state law and
regulations, Investment in the pool is reported at carrying amount, which reasonably estimates fair value.

Restricted Cash and Investments

The amount of cash held representing utility deposits and rental are deposits classified as restricted on the Statement of Net
Assets - Proprietary Funds.

Receivables and Payables

Under generally accepted accounting principles the City would normally include property taxes receivable subsequent to
sixty days after year-end as revenue and accounts receivable. Cibola County has been unable to determine this amount as of
June 30, 2009 and therefore, this amount has not been recorded on the records of the City. The unrecorded revenue ts not
material to the financial statements as of June 30, 2009,

Accrued expenses are accrued payroll and payroll related liabilities (withheld taxes and deductions).

Proprietary Fund Types

Accounts receivable consists of charges to users for utility services provided, and for unpaid charges from customers of the
golf course, and for rental assistance provided to citizens.

Management has determined that accounts receivable are fully collectible at June 30, 2009 with the exception of certain
receivables from ufility services provided to customers. Accordingly, an $80,190 allowance for doubtful accounts has been
recorded in the Joint Utility Enterprise Fund.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at cost using the first-in/first-out (FIFO) method. The costs of governmental fund-type inventories are
recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased.
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Capital Assets

Purchased or constructed capital assets are reported at cost or estimated historical cost. The City defines capital assets as
assets with lives greater than one-year and a cost or donated value of $5,000 or greater in accordance with New Mexico
State Statutes.

Donated capital assets are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of donation. Infrastructure assets have been
recorded (predominantly roads and utilities). The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the
asset or materially extend assets’ lives are not capitalized. Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over
the following estimated useful lives:

Asset Class Estimated Useful Lives
Land improvements 10-50
Infrastructure 2550
Buildings and improvements 30-50
Machinery and Equipment 315

The City has not capitalized library books as their net book value has been determined to be immaterial.

It 1s the policy of the City to capitalize interest for construction projects incurred through the proprietary funds.

Property Taxes

The City of Grants receives property taxes from the Cibola County Treasurer for operational purposes. Property taxes are
assessed on January 1 of each year, except on livestock, and are payable in two equal installments on November 10th of the
year in which the tax bill is prepared and April 10th of the following year, with the levies becoming delinquent 3¢ days
thereafter. The authorized municipal tax rate for general operating purposes is .004555 per $1,000 of net taxable value of
both residential and non-residential property allocated to the municipality. In addition, tax levies are authorized by statute to
service payments due on general obligation bonds which have been authorized pursuant to state law. Cuirently, the City has
no outstanding general obligation bonds.

The Mill Levy tax rates for the City of Grants for 2009 were as follows:

Residential Non-Residential
General Operating ' 004555 004555

These are the tax rates applied to each $1,000 of property value taxable by the City.

Deferred Revenne

Deferred revenues relate to grant funds received prior to expenditures. The funds are considered unearned and therefore
have been reported as deferved revenues.
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Income Taxes

As a local government entity, the City is not subject to federal or state income taxes.

Compensated Absences

The City allows employees to accrue annual leave based on years of service. Upon termination, accrued annual leave is paid
in full. Employees are eligible to be paid half of their accrued sick leave up to 240 hours upon termination.

As of June 30, 2009, the liability for accrued compensated absences is $439,563. The amount applicable to the Enterprise
Funds Utility is $30,367 and nonmajor proprietary funds of $39,301. The amount applicable to Government Activities is
$369,895. These liabilities will be liquidated as leave time is utilized from the varions funding sources from which each
employee is paid.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the proprietary fund type considers all highly liquid investments with maturity
of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents.

Inventory

Inventory is valued at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or market. Inventory in the General Fund consists of expendable
supplies held for consumption.

Iterfund Transactions

There are transactions that constitute reimbursements to a fund for expenditures initially expended from one fund that are
properly applicable to another fund, are recorded as expenditures in the reimbursing fund and as reductions of expenditure
in the fund that is reimbursed.

Interfund payables and receivables are reflected in the appropriate fund.

Interfund Transfers In (Qut) Transfers out

Nonmajor

General Governmental
Fund Funds Utilities Totals

Transfers In:

General fund $50,000 $339,409 $0 $389,409
Gasoline road tax 300,000 0 0 300,000
General governmental improvements 500,000 0 200,000 700,000
Nonmajor governmental funds 217,154 330,162 0 547,316
Utilities 112,750 0 907,506 1,020,316
Nonmajor proprietary funds 0 0 325,400 325,400
Totals $1,179,904 $6069,571 $1,432,966 $3,282,441
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Capital Transfers In (Qut Transfers out

(eneral
Government
Improvements Totals
Transfers In:
Utilities $1,489,002 $1,489,002
Nonmajor proprietary filnds 117,569 117,569
Totals $1,600,571 $1,600,5M
Due From (to) Other Funds Due to:
Nonmajor Nonmajor
General Govermmental Proprietary
Fund Funds Funds Totals
Due From:
General fund $9,200 $20,800 $0 $30,000
Nonmajor governmental finds 0 0 3,755 3,755
Nonmajor proprietary funds 0 10,882 23,317 34,199
Totals $9,200 $31,682 $27,072 $67,954
Net Assets

Net assets are displayed in three components;

Invested in Capital Assets, net of related debt - This component consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation
and reduced by the outstanding balances of any related debt attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of
those assets.

Restricted Net Assets — Net assets are reporfed as restricted when constraints placed on net asset use are either {1} externally
imposed by creditors, grantors, contributions or laws or regulations of other governments or (2) imposed by law through
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Unrestricted Net Assets — Net assets that do not meet the definition of “restricted” and “Invested in capital assets, net of
related debt.”

Fund Balance

Reserved — The portion of fund balance that is not appropriable for expenditure or is legally segregated for specific future
use.

Unreserved — The portion of fund balance that is not reserved but may be designated as noted below.

Designated — The position of fund balance established to indicate tentative plans for financial resources utilization in a
future period.
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NOTE 2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS

The City’s cash balances are veserved from subsequent years and consist of demand deposits, interest bearing savings
accounts, certificates of deposit and short-term investment funds. The certificates of deposit have varying interest rates and
maturity dates. The majority of City cash and investments are co-mingled. All interest income is accounted for in the refated
funds.

The City’s investments are governed by state law. State regulations require that uninsured demand deposits and deposit-type
investments such as certificates of deposit be collateralized by the depository thrift or banking institution, At present, state
statutes require that a minimum of fifty percent of uninsured balances on deposit with any one institution must be

collateralized, with higher requirements up to 100% for financially troubled institutions.

Cash and certificates of deposit at June 30, 2009 consisted of the following:

CASH
Reconciled On Deposit
Balance June 30, 2009  Account Type
Petty Cash — Cibola Senior Center $66
Petty Cash — General Operating 1,340
Petty Cash - Utilities Operating 500
Petty Cash — Water Meter Deposits 200
Petty Cash — Appearance Bonds 1,000
Grants State Bank 1,423,991 $1,814,494 Checking
Wells Fargo Bank Government Tmp. 349,216 349,216 Checking
Wells Fargo Bank Payroil 0 1,037 Checking
First Community Bank Housing Authority — Vouchers 148,156 149,439 Checking
First Community Bank Housing Authority — Low Rent 27,781 27,781 Checking
First Community Bank Housing Home Program 4,929 4,929 Checking
Total cash $1,957,179 $2,340,896
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NOTE 2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

Held and Directed by Trustee

The City has investiments that are directed by the New Mexico Mortgage Finance Authority for debt service as follows:

Percent of
Investment
Cost Market  Risk Rating Portfolio
Bank of Albuquerque:
U.S. Treasury Fd #0052 $66,175 $66,175 Aaa
U.S. Treasury Fd #0052 149,581 149,581 Aaa
U.S. Treasury Fd #0052 106,057 106,057 Aaa
.S, Treasury Fd #0052 167,953 167,953 Aaa
LS. Treasury Fd #0052 84,326 84,326 Aaa
U.S. Treasury Fd #0052 106,945 106,945 Aaa
681,037 681,037 3%
Investment Percent of
Investment
Cost Market Portfolio
First Communify Bank:
Certificate of Deposit $500,000 $500,000
Certificate of Deposit 500,000 500,000
Certificate of Deposit 500,000 500,000
Certificate of Deposit 500,000 500,000
Certificate of Deposit 211,808 211,808
Total Certificates of Deposit 2,211,808 2,211,808 27%
State Treasurer:
Pool —Reserve Contingency Fund $120,577 $102,490 1%
Pool — LGIP Fund 5,429,423 5,429,423 64%
Total Investinents 8,442 845 8,424,758 100%
Total Cash and Investments $10,400,024 $10,381,937
Governmental Activities $6,862,011
Business-Type Activities 1,773,916
Business-Type Activities Restricted 906,416
Fiduciary Funds 25,296
9,567,639
Governmental Activities — Investments 602,490
Business-Type Activities - Investiments 211,808
$10,381,937
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NOTE 2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

Weighted
Credit Risk- Average
Invesiment Type Cost Basis  Market Value Rating Maturity Days
U.S. Treasury Funds $681,037 $681,037 Aaa
State Investment Pool** - LGIP 5,429,423 5,429,423  AAAm 43
State Investment Pool — Reserve Contingency Fund 120,577 102,490 +
CD’s 2,213,142 2,213,142 NR 698
8,444,179 8,426,092
Iess investments reported as cash equivalents 7,991,217 7,991,217

$452,962 $434,875

** The City’s investment in the State Investment Pool was not rated, although the securities within the pool are rated.
a. The investments are valued at fair value based on quoted market prices as of the valuation date;

b. The State Treasurer Local Government Investment Pool is not SEC registered. The State Treasurer is
authorized to invest the short-term investment funds with the advice and consent of the State Board of Finance
in accordance with Sections 6-13-10 I through 6-10-10 P and Sections 6-10-10 1A and E, NMSA 1978,

c. The pool does not have unit shares. Per Section 6-10-10.1F, NMSA 1978, at the end of cach month all interest
earned is distributed by the State Treasurer to the contributing entities in amounts directly proportionate to the
respective amounts deposited in the fund and the length of time the amounts fund were invested; and

d. Participation in the local government investment pool is voluntary.

e. Separately issued financial statements are available from the New Mexico State Treasurer that does disclose the
collateral pledged to secure State Treasurer cash and investments,

¢ The Reserve Contingeney Fund was established from the State Investment Pool LGIP’s remaining position in the Reserve
Primary Fund. The Reserve Contingency Fund, which is not rated, is a non-performing asset and, as such, a WAM cannot
be calculated. The remaining balance of the fumd has been written down to 85% based on the estimated recoyerable
amount.

Concenfration of Credit Risk — Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of the City’s
investment in a single issuer. The City’s policies place no limit on the amount the City may invest in any one issuer.

Credit Risk —The City’s investments shall be in accordance with State Law, 6-10-10, and 6-10-10.1 NMSA 1978, including
but not limited to the following: Treasury Bills, Notes, Bonds, Strips, and US Government securities which are backed by
the full faith and credit of the U.8. Government. Negotiable securities of the State of New Mexico or any county,
municipality, or school district with the advice and consent of the Board of Finance per 6-10-44 NMSA 1978, 6-10-
[OFNMSA 1978, 6-10-IGNMSA 1978.
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NOTE 2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

Interest Rate Risk — Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of the City
investments. The City’s investment policy follows New Mexico State Statute Section 6-1 0-36E (NMSA, 1978 Comp)
requiring the interest rate on time deposits shall not be less than the rate fixed by the State Board of Finance, but in no case
shall the rate of interest be less than one hundred percent of the asked price on United States Treasury bills of the same
maturity on the day of deposit.

Foreign Currency Risk— Deposits and Investments — The City is not exposed to the risk that changes in exchange rates will

adversely affect the fair value of an investment as none of the investments pools nor certificates of deposit are dominated in
a foreign currency.

NOTE 3. PLEDGED COLLATERAL

First

Community Grants
Bank State Bank  Wells Fargo
Cash in bank, per June 30, 2009 (Note 2) $182,149 $1,814,494 $350,253
Certificate of deposit (Note 2) 2,213,142 0 0
Less: FDIC coverage (250,000) {250,000 {250,000)
Uninsured public funds 2,145,291 1,564,494 100,253
100% collateral requirement 393,957 0 0
50% collateral requirements 875,667 782,247 50,127
Pledged securities 1,810,490 3,030,000 955,129
Over (under) Collateralized $540,8606 $2,247,753 $905,002
Amount
Cusip Number  Maturity Date Pledged
First Community Bank FMV/Par
FNR 2001 - 71QE, 6% 31392AXR4 12/25/2016 $521,422
FHLB Agency note 3133XBCS9 08/14/2009 215,927
FHR 2768 GM, Note, 4.5% 31394TAS4 03/15/2034 173,495
MBS GNMA II 1-year TS4 ARM 5/1 36225EL)Z 08/20/2038 899,646
Total Pledged $1,810,490

Securities are held at Federal Home Loan Bank Dallas (Dallas, Texas).
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NOTE 3. PLEDGED COLLATERAL (CONTINUED)

Grants State Bank

Par Value

Gallup McKinley Cnty NMSD Non-Call Bond 3640 1ONZ7 08/01/2012 $300,000
Dulee ISD Non-Call Fr, Bond 264430FH7 07/11/2011 100,000
Dulce ISD Non-Call Fr, Bond 264430GF0 05/01/2012 260,000
Dulce ISP Non-Call Fr, Bond 264430GJ2 05/01/2015 300,000
Grants & Cibola County’s NM Sch Dist., Bond 388240CG6 10/01/2010 125,000
Catron & Cibola County’s Non-Callable, Bond 149321 BNO 07/15/2012 110,000
Clovis Community College Call, Bond 18934NAM4  06/01/2013 110,000
Chama SD Non-Call, Bond 157670CR9 08/01/2016 265,000
Cobre Consol, SD No.2 Non-Call FR, Bond 19105RACS 08/01/2011 200,000
Grants & Cibola County’s NMSch Dist., Bond 38824DDXS 11/15/2017 125,000
Alamogorde Wh/Swr NC FR Bond 011500FS9 06/01/2013 120,000
Chaves County Non-Call Bend 162634BG3 08/01/2012 200,000
Bernalillo Muni SD Non-Call Fr, Bond 085279LR6 08/01/2011 100,000
Eastern NM Univ. Non-Call, Bond 27678NAHG6 (8/15/2009 300,000
Grant County Non-Call FR 38776GBCI 09/01/2015 275,000
Grants & Cibola County SD Non-Call 388240E18 11/15/2013 200,000
Total Pledged $3,030,000
Securities are held at The Independent Bankers Bank (Dallas, Texas).
Wells Fargo FMV
FNLC, note 831087, 6% 31407HI80 11/01/35 $955,129
Total Pledged $955,129

Securities are held at Wells Fargo Bank California (San Francisco, California).

Custodial Credit Risk — Deposits

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the government’s deposits may not be returned to it. The
government does not have a deposit policy for custodial credit risk. As of June 30, 2009 $3,810,038 of the government’s
bank balances of $4,558,704 was exposed to custodial credit risk as follows:

Uninsured and uncollateralized held by a member bank other than the depositing bank.

Uninsured and collateralized held by a member bank other than the depositing bank.

$334,801
3,475,237

$3,810,038
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Capital asset activity for the City’s primary government for the year ended June 30, 2009 was as follows:

Balance Balance
06/30/2008 Additions Deletions Transfers  06/30/2009
Governmental Activities:
Capital Assets:
Non-Depreciable:
Art $122,897 $0 30 $0 $122,897
Land 3,358,224 66,563 0 0 3,424,787
Construction in process 1,136,839 2,836,645 (74,559  (1,790,570) 2,108,355
Depreciable:
Buildings 8,143,361 1,342,430 0 1,392,549 10,878,340
Land improvements 5,186,730 71,226 0 126,881 5,384,837
Machinery and equipment 5,218,614 204,456 (100,450) 271,140 5,593,760
Infrastructure 20,033,611 0 0 0 20,033,611
Total 43,200,276 4,521,320 (175,009) 0 47,546,587
Less Accumulated Depreciation:
Buildings (2,707,886) (262,002) 0 0 (2,969,888)
Land improvements (874,180) (123,450) 0 0 (997,630)
Machinery and equipment (3,628,469) (368,516) 94,084 0 (3,902,901
Infrastructure (2,839,561) (400,439) 0 0 (3,240,000)
Total accumulated depreciation  (10,050,696) (1,154,407) 94,084 0 (11,110,419)
Net capital assets $33,150,180 $3,366,913 {$80,925) $0  $36,436,168

Depreciation expense for governmental activities is $1,154,407 for the year.
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Balance Balance
06/30/2008 Additions Deletions Transfers  06/30/2009
Business-Type Activities:
Capital Assets:
Non-Depreciable:
Land $2,279,374 $0 $0 0 $2,279,374
Construction in process 2,320,057 0 (361,792) {860,649 1,097,616
Water rights 125,612 ] 0 0 125,612
Depreciable:
Buildings 1,960,144 0 0 0 1,960,144
Land improvements 836,121 0 0 2,195,689 3,031,810
Machinery and equipment 2,386,660 7,682 (10,169) 150,070 2,534,243
Ifrastructure 24,886,589 0 0 121,461 25,008,050
Total 34,794,557 7,682 (371,961) 1,606,571 36,036,849
Less Accumulated Depreciation:
Buildings (744,401) (49,883) 0 0 (794,284}
Land improvements (137,940) (32,117) 0 0 (170,057)
Machinery and equipment {1,365,632) (197,642) 10,169 0 (1,553,105)
Infrastructure (16,094,285) (411,032) 0 0 (16,505,317)
Total accumulated depreciation  (18,342,258) (690,674) 10,169 0 (19,022,763)
Net capital assets $16,452,299 ($682,992) ($361,792) $1,6006,571 $17,014,086

Depreciation expense for business-type activitics is $690,674 for the year.

Depreciation expense was charged to functions as follows:

Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities

General Government $895,678 $0
Public Safety 148,159 0
Health and Welfare 110,570 0
Recreation 0 0
Water 0 308,807
Sewer 0 278,562
Golf 0 68,817
Housing 0 34,488
Total 51,154,407 $690,674

-40-



CITY OF GRANTS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2009
NOTE 5. CHANGES IN LONG-TERM DEBT

The following summarized the changes in the long-term debt for government activities during 2009:

Amount

Balance Deletions/ Balance Due Within

06/30/2008  Additions  Transfers 06/30/2009  One Year

Bond payable $810,000 $0  $125,000  $685,000  $130,000
Notes payable 557,518 0 39,100 518,418 39,224
Accrued compensated absences 292,018 196,119 118,242 369,895 0
Totals $1,659,536  $1960,119  $282,342 $1,573,313  $169,224

Bonds and notes payable have been and are liquidated by gross receipts tax revenues. Accrued compensated absences have
been liquidated in the past by the fund to which the employees are assigned.

Series: New Mexico Finance Authority
Purpose: 1993 A and B Refunding
Original Issue: $1,495,0600

Principal: August |

Interest: February 1 and August 1

Rates: 0620% -3.110%

Amortized as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2010 $130,000 $17,578 $147,578
2011 130,000 14,367 144,367
2012 140,000 10,670 150,670
2013 140,000 6,595 146,595
2014 145,000 2,255 147,255

Totals $685,000 $51,465 $736,465
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2009

NOTE 5. CHANGES IN LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)
Purpose: Construction of Building to be leased for use as museum

Date of Tssue:  December 1, 1998
Original Issue: $844,445

Principal: May 1
Interest: November 1 and May 1
Rate: 3.150% - 5.150%

Amortized as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2010 $39,224  $24,547  $63,771
2011 44,350 22,838 67,188
2012 44,481 20,858 65,339
2013 49,615 18,835 68,450
2014 49,754 16,526 66,280
20152019 290,994 44,575 335,569

Totals $518,418 $148,179 $6066,597

The annual principal payment requirements for debt outstanding as of June 30, 2009, in governmental activities, are
summarized as follows:

Principat

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, Payment
2010 $169,224
2011 174,350
2012 184,481
2013 189,615
2014 194,754
2015-2019 660,889
$1,573,313
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2009
NOTE 5. CHANGES IN LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

The following stmmarizes the changes in the Business-Type Activities Long-Term Debt during 2009:

Amount Due

Balance Deletions/ Balance  Within One

06/30/2008 Additions Transfers  06/30/2009 Year

Bonds payable $625,000 $0 $115,000 $510,000 $120,000
Notes payable 3,671,003 0 335,260 3,335,743 341,965
Leases payable 104,387 0 58,529 45,859 45,859
Accrued compensated absences 55,931 34,908 21,171 69,668 0
Totals 84,456,321 $34,908 $529,960  $3,961,270 $507,824

Bonds outstanding reported in the Proprietary Fund at June 30, 2009, consist of the following issues.

Series: New Mexico Finance Authority
Purpose: Series 1993 Water and Sewer Refunding
Original Issue: $1,060,000

Principal: February |

Interest: February 1 and August 1

Rates: 62% -3.110%

Amoriized as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2010 $120,000 $14,785 $134,785
2011 125,000 11,629 136,629
2012 125,000 8,079 133,679
2013 140,000 4,354 144,354

Totals $510,000 $38,847 $548,847
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2009

NOTE 5. CHANGES IN LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

Notes outstanding reported in the Proprietary Fund at June 30, 2009, consist of the following:

New Mexico Environmental Department Loan

Purpose: Construction and Acquisition of Equipment for Waste Water Treatment Plant

Original Issue: $6,600,000
Principal: August 15
Interest: August 15
Rates 3.00%

Amortized as follows:

Maturity Principal Interest Total

2010 $341,965 $66,715 $408,680

2011 348,804 59,876 408,680

2012 355,781 52,899 408,680

2013 362,896 45,784 408,680

2014 370,154 38,526 408,680

2015 -2018 1,556,143 78,578 1,634,721
Totals $3,335,743 $342,378  $3,678,121

Amarillo National Bank - Lease

Purpose: Golf Carts for Golf Conrse

Original Issue: $196,061

Principal: Monthiy

Interest; Monthty

Rate: 3.81%

Amortized as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total

2010 $45,859 $263 $46,122
Totals $45,859 $263 $46,122
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2009

NOTE 5. CHANGES IN LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

The foliowing sumimarizes the combined aggregate maturities for long-term borrowing in the Proprietary Fund for the next
five years following Fune 30, 2009:

Principal

June 30, Payment
2010 $507,824
2011 473,804
2012 480,781
2013 502,896
2014 370,154
20152018 1,625,811
Total $3,961,270

Lease Purchase Contracts

At June 30, 2009 the City had machinery and equipment capitalized under purchase agreements, as follows:

Machinery and equipment $192,514

Of the total interest cost incurred on long-term debt of $137,427 none was capitalized at June 30, 2009,

NOTE 6. PERA PENSION PLAN

Plan Description. Substantially all of the City of Grants’ full-time employees participate in a public employee retirement
system authorized under the Public Employees Retirement Act (Chapter 10, Article 11 NMSA 1978). The Public
Employees Retirement Association (PERA) is the administrator of the plan, which is a cost-sharing multiple-employer
defined benefit retirement plan. The plan provides for retirement, disability benefits, survivor benefits, and cost- of-living
adjustments to plan members and beneficiaries. PERA issues a separate, publicly available financial report that includes
financial statements and required supplementary information. The report may be obtained by writing to PERA, P.O. Box
2123, Santa Fe, New Mexico 87504-2123. The report is also available on PERA’s website at www.pera.state.nm.us,

Funding Policy. Plan members are required to contribute 9.15% of their gross salary, police contribute 7.0% and fire
employees contribute 8.0%. The City of Grants is required to contribute 18.5% of the gross salaries for police employees,
17.5% for fire employees, and 9.15% for other employees. The contribution requirements of plan members and the City of
Grants are established in State statute under Chapter 10, Article 11, NMSA 1978. The requirements may be amended by
acts of the legislature. The City of Grants contributions to PERA for the fiscal years ending June 30, 2009, 2008 and 2007
respectively were $295,533, $297,199 and $304,155, which equal the amount of the required contributions for each fiscal
year.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2009

NOTE 7, POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

The City of Grants has chosen not to participate in Retiree Health Care or any other post employment benefit program.

NOTE 8. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIIES
Grant Audit

The City receives Federal and State Grants for specific purposes that are subject to review and audit by the funding
agencies. Such audits could result in a request for reimbursement by the agency for expenditures disallowed under the terms
and conditions of the appropriate agency. In the opinion of the City management, such disallowances, if any, will not be
significant.

NOTE 9. BUDGETARY - GAAP REPORTING RECONCILIATION

The accompanying combined statement of Revenues and Expenditures, Budget (Non-GA AP} and Actual (Cash Basis), all
Governmental Fund Types, presents comparisons of the adopted Budget (more fully disclosed in Note 1) with actual data on
a budgetary basis. Since accounting principles applied for purposes of developing data on a budgetary basis differ
significantly from those used to present financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the Uniied States of America, a recongiliation of resultant basis, timing, perspective, and entity differences in excess
(deficiency) of revenues aver expenditures for the year ended June 30, 2009, is presented below:

Major Funds

General
Gasoline  Government
General Road Tax Improvements
Excess {(deficiency) of revenues and other financial sources over
expenditures and other financial uses (budgetary basis) $736,915 $295,868 ($384,978)
Adjustments for revenue accruals, (ransfers, earnings on investments 11,704 059,998 99,560
Adjustments for expenditures for payables, inventory, other
expenditure accruals (303,082) (56,758) 1,443,825
Capiial {ransfers out 0 0 {1,606,571)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financial sources over
expenditures and other financial uses {GAAP basis) $445,537 $899,109 ($448,158)




CITY OF GRANTS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2009

NOTE 10. OTHER REQUIRED INDIVIDUAL FUND DISCLOSURES

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require disclosure, as part of the basic financial
statements, of certain information concerning individual funds including:

L. Net Working Capital:
Enterprise Fund:
Utility $1,352,448
Low Rent 68,427
Home Program 189,500
Golf Course $26,264
2, Excess of Expenditures Over Appropriations:
Low Rent — Enterprise Fund $2,663
3. The following funds experienced a deficit fiund balance:
Litter Control and Beautification $599
Local Government Corrections $5,804

Management intends to transfer sufficient funds from the general fund to cover any deficits.

NOTE 11. SURETY BOND

Surety bonds are in force per the following schedule:

Insurance Company Type of Bond Coverage From - To  Coverage Limits
Western Surety Position 09/30/2008 $10,000 each on Cashiers, Mayor, Pro-Tem

09/30/2009 Mayor, Project Assistant
Western Surety Employee Theft/ 07/01/2008 $10,000 each incident

Dishonesty 06/30/2009 $20,000 aggregate all employees
Western Surety Municipal Judge 08/24/2008 City Manager - $50,000
Bond 08/24/2009 Municipal Judge - $50,000

National Union Alrport (437/01/2008 $10,000 each incident

06/30/2009
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTE 12. PARTICIPATION IN PUBLIC ENTITY RISK POOL

The City is a member of the New Mexico Self-Insurers’ Fund (the “Fund”). The Fund was created to formulate, develop,
and administer a program of medified self-funding for the Fund’s membership, abtain lower costs for insurance coverage,
and develop a comprehensive loss control program, The City pays an annual premium to the Fund for its workers’
compensation liability, general liability, auto liability, auto physical damage, and property coverage. The Cify’s agreement
with the Fund provides that the Fund will be self-sustaining through member premiums, and will provide, through
commercial companies reinsurance contracts, individual stop loss coverage for member cities.

The City paid premiums of $510,994 for the year ended June 30, 2009.

NOTE 13. OPERATING LEASES

The City of Grants has entered into three thirty-six (36) month operating leases with IBM covering an “AS/400” computer
and various peripherals calling for monthly payments of $1,964 beginning July 1, 1997. The lease was renewed April 1,
2009 for one year.

The City of Grants has entered into two 48-month operating leases with Lanier Warld (now Ricoh} covering copiers calling
for monthty payments of $144 and $275 beginning January 2008.

The City of Grants has entered into 48 month operating leases with Lanier World (now Ricoh) covering a copier for city
hall calling for monthly payments of $448 beginning May 2007.

The City of Grants has entered intoa 12 month operating lease with Sunguard Hte, Inc, covering a software lease calling for
an annual payment of $33,558 beginning May 2009.

The City of Grants has enfered into a 60 month operating lease with Avaya Financial covering a telephone lease calling for
meonthly payments of $912 beginning March 2005.

The City of Grants has entered into a 48 month operating lease with Ricoh covering a copier and for monthly payments of
$605 beginning October 2008.

Future minimum lease payments are as follows:

Fiscal Year Amount
2010 $20,385
2011 14,512
2012 11,068

Total $45,965

AH of above leases contain provisions for termination in the event budgetary constraints prevent the City from meeting
financed obligations under said leases.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTE 14. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The City issued revenue bonds to finance the construction and improvements of the water and waste water (sewer) facilities,
Both the water and sewer departments are accounted for in the utilities fund, which also accounts for refuse services.
However, the revenue bonds rely solely on the revenue generated by the water and sewer activities for repayment.
Summary financial information for the water and sewer departments is presented below.,

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

‘Water Sewer
Assets:
Current assets ($264,839) $1,191,925
Restricted assets 555,858 350,758
Capital assets 7,538,301 7,766,299
Total assets 7,829,320 9,308,982
Liabilities:
Current liabilities 542,414 295,430
Noncurrent Habilities 1,704,311 1,701,399
Total liabilities 2,246,725 1,996,829
Net Assets:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 5,615,429 5,843,428
Restricted 351,021 350,758
Unrestricted (383,855} 1,117,967
Total net assets $5,582,595 $7,312,153
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JUNE 30, 2009

NOTE 14. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Water Sewer
Water/sewer charges, pledged against bonds $1,957,148 $1,833,730
Depreciation expense (308,807) (278,560)
Operating expense (2,135,032) (1,538,457)
Operating income (486,691) 16,713
Interest income 12,971 12,972
Interest expense and other debt expense (46,212) (46,212)
Loss on asset disposal (361,792) 0
Misceltaneous income 0 5,354
Operating transfers, net (137,550) (137,550}
Capital transfers, net 532,736 956,266
Change in net assets (486,538) 807,543
Beginning net assets 6,069,133 6,504,610
Ending net assets $5,582,595 $7,312,153
CONDENSED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Water Sewer

Net Cash Provided (Used) By:
Operating activities ($178,684) $271,671
Noncapital financing activities {137.550) (137,550)
Capital and related financing activities {225,130} (226,091)
Investing activities 12,971 12,972
Net increase (decrease) (528,393) (79,598)
Beginning cash and cash equivalents 555,302 1,450,204
Ending cash and cash equivalents $26,909 $1,370,606

Cash and Cash Equivalents:

Cash {(included in current assets) ($528,949) $1,019,848
Cash (resiricted assets) 555,858 350,758
$26,909 $1,370,600
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CITY OF GRANTS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2009
NOTE 15. COMMITMENTS

The City had outstanding construction contracts at June 30, 2009,

Contract Spentto  Commitment Source of
Amount Date Remainimg Payment
Mullen Heller Architecture
Library Renovation $107,235 $6,655 $100,580 State
J3 Systems LLC
Club House Roof $179,506 $70,824 $108,082 State
Foresgren & Assoc.
Wastewater Treatment Plan $68,466 $31,385 $37,081 City
Armstrong Consultants
Airport Improvements $56,860 30 $56,860 Federal & State
Riley Industrial Services
Water Tank $453,721 $442,140 $11,581 State
Wilson & Co.
Water Well $13,864 $0 $13,864 City
Valdez & Sons Construction
Park Improvements $315,126 $0 $315,126 State
Fox Builders
Park Tmprovements $33,798 $19,898 $13,900 State

The City has entered into a settlement agreement as a result of a number of residents that objected fo the issuance of a
permit for ground water discharge. The residents complained of high ground water problems at their properties outside the
city limits allegedly caused at least in part by the City’s operation of the Wastewater Treatment Facility and Coyote de Mal
Pais Golf Course. As part of the settlement, the City purchased some homes and began the process of making payments
into a settlement fund. All payments required to date have been made. As of June 30, 2009, the City has paid $343,330
and accrued an additional $325,000 in accordance with the agreement. The City has received insurance proceeds in the
amount of $125,000 to offset these costs. Tn addition, the City will need fo construct a ground water drain and acquire some
additional land for that purpose. We are unable to predict the cost of this project because NMED has not approved the
ground water drain plans at this time.
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CITY OF GRANTS
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2009

Special Revenue Funds

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources, other than expendable trusts and
major capital projects that are legally restricted to expenditures for specific purposes.

Cemetery Perpetual Care — To account for the portion of the sale of cemetery lots fo be used for the perpetual care and
maintenance of the city cemetery. Authorized by city resofution and NMSA 3-40-1.

Emergency Medical Services — To account for the state funding for the acquisition of emergency medical equipment,
Authority NMSA 24-10A-1,

Tire Protection — To account for the state funding and for the acquisition and maintenance of adequate fire protection
facilities in the Grants-Milan area. Authority NMSA 59A-53-1,

Foster Grandparents Program — To account for state funding for senior citizens. Authorized by city resolution.

Housing Authority Capital Funds Program — To account for federal funding made available by Housing and Urban
Development (TTUD) fo Public Housing Authorities for their capital activities, including modemization and development of
public housing. Financing is authorized by federal regulations.

Housing Authority Vouchers — To account for the Federal funding assistance payments and modernization provided by
HUD, Section 8 grants used for housing rental of homes. Financing is authorized by Federal regulations.

Juvenile Recreation — To account for the revenues generated by cigarette taxes, which are restricted to expenditures for
recreational purposes. Authority NMSA 7-12-15.

Law Enforcement Protection — To account for the state funding for law enforcement, which is used to provide adequate
police protection. Authority NMSA 29-13-3,

Litter Control and Beautification — To account for funding for cleanup and beautification from the State Highway
Department. Authorized by city resolution and NMSA 67-16-14.

Local Government Corrections — To account for state grant monies received by the mumicipality for prisoner care.
Authority NMSA 33-3-25.

Lodgers’ Tax — To account for the collection and administration of the fodgers= tax which is imposed on overnight motel
and motel accommodations. Authority NMSA 3-38-14.

Lodgers’ Tax Promotional — To account for the expenditure of lodgers= tax funds, which are used to promote commerce
and tourism. Authority NMSA 3-38-14.

Senior Companion Program — To account for provision of nutrition services, fransportation, information, and referrals,
Authorized by city resolution.

Senior Employment Program — To account for state funding for the employment of seniors. Authorized by city resolution,
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2009

Special Revenue Funds (Continued)

Special Library Donation — To account for memorial donations and the purchase of books for the library. Authorized by
¢ity resolution.

State and Local (S & 1.} Narcotics Assistance Control Program — To account for the Federal funding for law enforcement
activities against narcotics use and trafficking. Authorized enforcement by Federal regulations P 99-570.
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CITY OF GRANTS

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEETS
JUNE 30, 2009

Cemstery  Emergency

Perpetual Medical Fire Foster
Care Services Protection  Grandparents
ASSETS
Cash $102,077 $32 $48,367 $35
Accounts receivable 0 0 0 12,580
Grant revenue receivable 0 0 0 0
Due from other funds 0 4] 0 0
Other deferred charges 0 o 0 0
Total assets $102,077 $32 $48,367 $12,615
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $0 $0 $0 $0
Accrued payroll 0 0 0 1,692
Deferred revenue 0 0 0 0
Due to other funds 0 0 0 6,900
Total liabilities 0 0 0 8,492
Fund Balance:
Unreserved, undesignated 102,077 32 48 367 4,123
Total fund balance 102,077 32 48,367 4,123
Total liabilities and fund balance $102,077 $32 $48,367 $12,615

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEETS

JUNE 30, 2009

Housing
Authority
Capital Housing Law Litter
Funds Authority Juvenie  Enforcement Control and
Program Vouchers  Recreation  Protection  Beautification
ASSETS
Cash $0 $148,156 $86,062 $14,793 $1
Accounts receivahle 0 1,888 0 27,200 3,600
Grant revenue receivable 0 0 0 0 0
Due from other funds 0 3,755 0 0 0
Other deferred charges 0 0 0 0 0
Total assels $0 $153,799 $86,062 $41,993 $3,601
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $0 $1,788 $0 $0 $0
Accrued payroll 0 299 0 0 0
Deferred revenue 0 0 0 0 0
Due to cther funds 0 10,882 0 0 4,200
Total liabilities 0 12,969 0 0 4,200
Fund Balance:
Unreserved, undesignated t] 140,830 86,062 41,993 (599)
Total fund balance 0 140,830 86,062 41,993 (599)
Total liabilities and fund balance $0 $153,799 $86,062 $41,993 $3,601

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEETS
JUNE 30, 2009

Local Lodgers' Senior Sentor
Government  Lodgers' Tax Companion Employment
Corrections Tax Promotional Program Program
ASSETS
Cash $1,729 $138,046 $53,305 §77 $19
Accounts receivable 0 34,805 0 13,573 5,209
Grant revenue receivabfe 0 0 0 0 0
Due from other funds 0 4 0 0 0
Other deferred charges 0 Y 0 0 0
Total assets $1,729 $172,851 $53,305 $13,650 $5,228
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $7,533 $0 $0 $0 $0
Accrued payroll 0 0 ¢ 0 1,717
Ceferred revenue 0 0 0 0 0
Due to other funds 0 0 0 6,800 2,900
Total liabilities 7,633 0 0 6,800 4,617
Fund Balance:
Unreserved, undesignated {5,804} 172,851 53,305 3,850 611
Total fund balance {5,804) 172,851 53,306 5,850 611
Total liabilities and fund balance $1,729 $172,851 $53,305 $13,650 $5,228

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEETS
JUNE 30, 2009

State
and Local
Special Narcotics
Library Assistance
Donation Control Totals
ASSETS
Cash $15,120 $8,401 $616,220
Accounts receivable 0 32,595 131,450
Grant revenue receivable 0 0 0
Due from other funds 0 0 3,755
Other deferred charges 0 0 0
Total assels $15,120 $40,996 $751,425
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $0 $0 $9,321
Accrued payroli 0 0 3,608
Deferred revenue 0 0 0
Due to other funds 0 0 31,682
Total fiabilities 0 0 44,611
Fund Balance:
Unreserved, undesignated 15,120 40,996 706,814
Total fund balance 15,120 40,996 706,814
Total liabilities and fund balance $15,120 $40,996 $751,425

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.

-57-



CITY OF GRANTS
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Cemetery  Emergency
Perpetual Medical Fire Foster
Care Services Protection Grandparents
REVENUES
intergovernmental $0 30 $134,620 $75,599
Taxes 0 ] 0 0
Lodgers' Tax 0 0 0 0
Fees 0 ] 0 0
Investment income 1,489 32 1,668 0
Sales of property 16,390 0 0 0
Miscellaneous 0 0 0 0
Total revenues 17,879 32 136,288 75,599
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government 150 0 0 0
Public safety 0 0 213,969 0
Public works 0 0 0 0
Health and welfare o 7,386 0 74,778
Culture and recreation 0 0 0 0
Capital outlay 0 0 0 0
Total expenditures 150 7,386 213,969 74,778
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures 17,729 (7,354) (77,681) 821
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Operating transfers in 0 0 0 0
Onperating transfers (out) 0 Q 0 0
Total other financing sources (uses) 0 0 0 0
Net changes in fund balances 17,729 {7,354) {77,681} 821
Fund balance, beginning of year 84,348 7,386 126,048 3,302
Fund balance (deficit), end of year $102,077 $32 $48,367 $4,123

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Housing
Authority
Capital Housing Law Litter
Funds Authority Juvenile  Enforcement Control and
Program Vouchers Recreation Protection  Beautification
REVENUES
Intergovernmental $56,663 $393,217 $0 $27,200 $4,800
Taxes 0 0 4,143 0 0
Lodgers' Tax 0 0 0 0 0
Fees 0 0 0 0 0
Investment income 0 1,401 1,416 110 0
Sales of property 0 0 0 0 0
Miscellaneous 0 0 0 0 0
Total revenues 56,663 394,618 5,559 27,310 4,800
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government 0 0 0 0 0
Public safely 0 0 0 21,196 0
Public works 0 0 0 0 4,800
Health and welfare 13,239 374,876 0 0 0
Culture and recreation 0 0 0 0 0
Capital outlay 43,424 0 0 0 0
Total expenditures 56,663 374,876 0 21,196 4,800
Excess (deficiency) of reventies over
expenditures 0 19,742 5,659 6,114 0
Other Financing Sources {(Uses):
Operating fransfers in 0 0 0 0 0
Operating transfers {out) 0 0 0 0 0
Total other financing sources {(uses) 0 0 0 0 0
Net changes in fund balances 0 19,742 5,559 6,114 0
Fund balance, beginning of year 4] 121,088 80,503 35,879 {599)
Fund balance (deficit), end of year $0 $140,830 $86,062 $41,993 {$599)

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Local Lodgers' Senior Senior
Government Lodgers’ Tax Companion Employment
Corrections Tax Promotional Program Program
REVENUES
Intergovernmental $0 $0 $0 $85,165 $33,080
Taxes 0 0 0 0 0
Lodgers' Tax 0 369,812 0 0 0
Fees 47,339 0 0 0 0
Investment income 100 2,569 0 0 0
Sales of property g 0 0 0 0
Miscellansous 0 0 0 0 0
Tolal revenues 47,439 372,381 0 85,165 33,080
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government 0 55,508 270,392 0 0
Public safety 109,002 0 0 0 0
Public works 1] 0 0 0 0
Health and welfare 0 0 0 87,693 33,865
Culture and recreation 0 0 0 0 0
Capital outlay 0 0 0 0 0
Tolal expenditures 109,002 55,506 270,392 87,693 33,865
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures (61,563) 316,875 (270,392) (2,528) {785)
Other Financing Sources {Uses):
Operating transfers in 52,000 0 274,045 0 0
Operating transfers (out) 0 {324,045) 0 0 0
Total other financing sources (uses) 52,000 {(324,045) 274,045 0 0
Net changes in fund balances (9,563) (7,170) 3,653 (2,528) {785)
Fund balance, beginning of year 3,759 180,021 49,652 9,378 1,396
Fund balance (deficif), end of year {$5,804) $172,851 $53,305 $6,850 $611

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

State
and Local
Special Narcotics
Library Assistance
Donation Control Totals
REVENUES
intergovernmental $0 %0 $810,344
Taxes 0 0 4,143
Lodgers' Tax G 0 369,812
Fees 0 0 47,339
Investment income 239 0 9,024
Sales of properly 0 0 16,390
Miscellaneous 1,125 32,585 33,720
Total revenues 1,364 32,595 1,290,772
EXPENDITURES
Current;
General government 0 0 326,048
Public safety 0 0 344,167
Public works 0 0 4,800
Health and welfare 0 0 591,837
Culture and recreation 51 0 51
Capital outlay 0 0 43,424
Total expenditures 51 0 1,310,327
Excess (deficiency)} of revenues over
expenditures 1,313 32,595 {19,555)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Operating transfers in 0 0 326,045
Operating transiers {out) 0 0 (324,045)
Total other financing sources (uses) 0 0 2,000
Net changes in fund balances 1,313 32,595 (17,555)
Fund balance, beginning of year 13,807 8,401 724,369
Fund balance (deficit), end of year $15,120 $40,998 $7086,814

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
CEMETERY PERPETUAL CARE FUND
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL (CASH BASIS)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Original Final Favorable
Approved Approved {Unfavorable)
Budget Budget Actual Variance

REVENUES
Sale of lots $7,000 $7,000 $16,390 $9,390
Interest on investments 0 G 1,489 1,489
Donations 0 0 0 0

Tofal revenues 7,000 7,000 17,879 10,878
EXPENDITURES
Personnel 0 0 0 0
Operating 0 0 150 (150)
Capital outlay 50,000 50,000 ) 50,000

Total expendifures 50,000 50,000 150 48,850
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expendiliires {43,000} (43,000) $17,729 $60,729
Budgeted cash carryover 43,000 43,000

$0 $0

Budgetary - GAAP Reporting Reconclliation:
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and

other financing sources {uses) $17,729
Adjustments for revenue accruals 0
Adjustments for expenditures accruals 0
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources

over expenditures and other financing uses {GAAP Basis) $17,729

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES FUND
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL {CASH BASIS}
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Original Final Favorable
Approved Approved {Unfavorable)
Budget Budget Aclual Variance
REVENUES
Intergovernmental $7,993 $7,093 $0 {$7,993)
Interest on investments 0 0 32 32
Total revenues 7,993 7,993 32 {7,961)
EXPENDITURES
Personnel 0 0 0 0
Operating 0 0 7,386 (7.386)
Capital outlay 9,993 15,379 0 15,379
Total expenditures 9,993 15,379 7,386 7,993
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures {2,000) (7,386) ($7,354) $32
Budgeted cash carryover 2,000 7,386
$0 $0

Budgetary - GAAP Reporting Recongiliation:

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and
other financing sources (uses)

Adjustments for revenue accruals

Adjustments for expenditures accruals

($7,354)
0

0

Excess {deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources
over expenditures and other financing uses (GAAP Basis)

($7,354)

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
FIRE PROTECTION FUND
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL (CASH BASIS)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Original Final Favorable
Approved Approved {Unfavorable)
Budget Budget Actual Variance

REVENUES
Intergovernmental $123,334 $128,750 $134,620 $5,870
Miscellaneous 0 0 0 0
Interest on investments 0 0 1,668 1,668

Total revenues 123,334 128,750 136,288 7,638
EXPENDITURES
Personnel 0 0 0 0
Operating 64,797 169,405 167,063 2,342
Capital outlay 98,637 79,977 46,906 33,071

Total expenditures 163,334 249,382 213,969 35413
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (40,000) {120,632) ($77,681) 842,951
Budgeted cash carryover 40,000 120,632

$0 $0

Buegetary - GAAP Reporting Reconciliation:
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and

other financing sources (uses) ($77,681)
Adjustments for revenue accruals 0
Adjustments for expenditures accruals 0
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources

over expenditures and other financing uses (GAAP Basis) {$77,681)

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
FOSTER GRANDPARENTS PROGRAM FUND
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET {(NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL (CASH BASIS)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Original Final Favorable
Approved Approved {(Unfavorable)
Budget Budget Actual Variance
REVENUES
Intergovernmental $87,705 $87,705 $73,852 {$13,853)
EXPENDITURES
Personnel 21,976 21,976 58,060 {36,084)
Operating 51,223 51,223 15,126 36,097
Capital outlay 0 0 0
Total expenditures 73,199 73,199 73,186 13
Excess {deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 14,506 14,506 666 {13,840}
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Cperating transfers in 16,000 16,000 0 {16,000)
Operating transfers (out) {16,000) {16,000) 0 16,000
Total other financing sources (uses) 0 0 0 0
Excess {deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and
other financing sources {Uses) $14,508 $14,506 $666 {$13,840)
Budgetary - GAAP Reporting Reconciliation:
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and
other financing sources (uses) $666
Adjustments for revenue accruals 1,747
Adjustments for expenditures accruals {1,592)
Excess {deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources
over expenditures and other financing uses (GAAP Basis) $821

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
HOUSING AUTHORITY CAPITAL FUNDS PROGRAM
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL (CASH BASIS)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Original Final Favorable
Approved Approved (Unfavorabie)
Budget Budget Actual Variance
REVENUES
Intergovernmental $89,580 $89,580 $56,663 ($32,917)
Interest on investments 0 0 0 0
Totaf revenues 89,580 89,580 56,663 (32,917)
EXPENDITURES
Personnel 0 0 0 0
Operating 3,448 3,448 13,239 (9,791)
Capital outlay 86,132 86,132 43,424 42,708
Total expenditures 89,580 89,580 56,663 32,917
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 0 0 0 g
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Operating fransfers {out) 0 0 0 0
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and
other financing sources {(uses) 50 30 50 $0
Budgetary - GAAP Reporting Reconciliation:
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and
other financing sources {uses) $0
Adjustments for revenue accruals 0
Adjustments for expenditures accruals 0
Excess {deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources
over expenditures and other financing Lises (GAAP Basis) 30

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
HOUSING AUTHORITY VOUCHERS FUND
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL (CASH BASIS)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Original Final Favorable
Approved Approved {Unfaverable)
Budget Budget Actual Variance
REVENUES
Intergovernmental $500,000 $500,000 $392,863 ($107,137)
Interest on investments 0 0 1,401 1,401
Miscellaneous income 0 0 354 354
Total revenues 500,000 500,000 394,618 {105,382)
EXPENDITURES
Personnel 24,000 24,000 22,108 1,892
Operating 14,810 14,810 17,705 (2,895)
Housing assistance paymenis 480,000 460,000 335,063 124,937
Capital outlay 0 0 0 Q0
Total expenditures 408,810 488,810 374,876 123,834
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expendifures $1,190 $1,190 $19,742 $18,552
Budgetary - GAAP Reporting Reconciliation:
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and
other financing sources (uses) $19,742
Adjustments for revenue accruals 0
. Adjustments for expenditures accruals 0
Excess {deficiency) of revenues and other financing scurces
over expenditures and other financing uses (GAAP Basis) $19,742

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
JUVENILE RECREATION FUND
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL (CASH BASIS)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Original Final Favorable
Approved Approved {Unfavorable)
Budget Budget Actual Variance

REVENUES
Taxes $5,000 $5,000 54,143 (3857)
Interest on investments 0 0 1,416 1,416

Total revenues 5,000 5,000 5,559 559
EXPENDITURES
Personnel 0 0 0 0
Operating 60,000 60,000 0 60,000
Capital outlay 0 0 0 0

Total expenditures 60,600 60,000 0 60,000
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures {65,000) {55,000) $5,559 $60,559
Budgeted cash carryover 55,000 55,000

$0 30

Budgetary - GAAP Reporting Reconciliation:
Excess {deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and

other financing sources (uses) $5,559
Adjustments for revenue accruals 0
Adjustments for expenditures accruals 0
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources

over expenditures and other financing uses {(GAAFP Basis) $5,559

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
LAW ENFORCEMENT PROTECTION FUND
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL (CASH BASIS)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Original Final Favorable
Approved Approved {Unfavorable)
Budget Budget Actual Variance

REVENUES
Intergovernmental $27,800 $29,600 $29,600 50
Miscelianeous 0 ¢] 0 0
Interest on invesiments 0 0 110 110

Total revenues 27,800 29,600 29,710 110
EXPENDITURES
Personnel 0 0 0 o
Operating 20,000 13,079 21,196 (8,117)
Capital outlay 22,800 22,800 0 22,800

Total expenditures 42,800 35,879 21,196 14,683
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (15,000) (6,279) $8,514 $14,793
Budgeted cash carryover 15,000 6,279

30 $0

Budgetary - GAAP Reporting Reconcitiation:
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and

other financing sources (uses) $8,514
Adjustments for revenue accruals {2.400)
Adjustments for expenditures accruals 0
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources

over expenditures and other financing uses (GAAP Basis) $6,114

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
LITTER CONTROL AND BEAUTIFICATION FUND
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL (CASH BASIS)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Original Final Favorable
Approved Approved {Unfavorable)
Budget Budget Actual Variance
REVENUES
Intergovernmental $7,100 $7,100 $4,700 ($2,400)
EXPENDITURES
Personnel 7,100 7,100 0 7,100
Operating 0 0 4,800 (4,800)
Capital outlay 0 0 4] ]
Total expenditures 7,100 7,100 4,800 2,300
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures $0 $0 {$100) (3100}

Budgetary - GAAP Reporting Recongciliation:

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and
other financing sources {uses)

Adjustments for revenue accruals

Adjustments for expenditures accruals

($100)
100

0

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources
over expenditures and other financing uses (GAAP Basis)

$0

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS

LOCAL GOVERNMENT CORRECTIONS FUND
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL (CASH BASIS}

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Original Final Favorable
Approved Approved {Unfavorable)
Budget Budget Actual Variance

REVENUES
Court fees $80,000 $80,000 $47,339 ($32,661)
Interest on investments 0 0 100 100

Tolal revenues 80,000 80,000 47,439 {(32,561)
EXPENDITURES
Personnel 0 0 0 0
Operating 125,000 123,000 110,994 12,006
Capital outlay 0 0 0 0

Total expenditures 125,000 123,000 110,994 12,006
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures {45,000) {43,000} {63,5655) (20,555)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Operating transfers (in) 30,000 30,000 52,000 22,000
Excess (deficiency) of revenueas over expenditures and
other financing sources (uses) (15,000) {13,000) {$11,555) 81,445
Budgeted cash carryover 15,000 13,000

$0 30

Budgetary - GAAP Reporting Reconciliation:
Excess {(deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and

other financing sources (uses) ($11,555)
Adjustments for revenue accruals 0
Adjustments for expenditures accruals 1,892
Excess {deficiency} of revenues and other financing sources

over expenditures and other financing uses (GAAP Basis) {$9,563)

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements,
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CITY OF GRANTS
LODGERS' TAX FUND
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET {(NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL (CASH BASIS})
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Original Final Favorable
Approved Approved (Unfavorable)
Budget Budget Actual Variance

REVENUES
Taxes $340,000 $340,000 $371,242 $31,242
Interest on investments 0 0 2,569 2,569

Total revenuegs 340,000 340,000 373,811 33,811
EXPENDITURES
Personnel 0 0 0 o
Operating 63,119 $83,119 55,506 7,613
Capital outlay 0 0 0 0

Total expenditures 63,119 63,119 55,506 7,613
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 276,881 276,881 318,305 41,424
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Operating transfers (out) (324,045) (324,045) (324,045) 0
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and
other financing sources (Uses) {(47,164) {47,164) {$5,740) $41,424
Budgeted cash carryover 47,164 47,164

$0 $0

Budgetary - GAAP Reporting Reconciliation;
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and

other financing sources (Uses) ($5,740)
Adjustments for revenue accruals (1,430)
Adjustments for expenditures accruals 0
Excess {deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources

over expenditures and other financing uses (GAAP Basis) {$7,170)

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
LODGERS' TAX PROMOTIONAL FUND
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL (CASH BASIS)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Original Final Favorable
Approved Approved {(Unfavorable)
Budget Budget Actual Variance

REVENUES $0 $0 $0 $0
EXPENDITURES
Personnel 0 0 0 0
Operating 274,045 274,045 270,392 3,653
Capltal outlay 0 0 0 0

Total expenditures 274,045 274,045 270,392 3,663
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (274,045) {274,045) (270,392) 3,653
Other Financing Sources (Uses}):
Operating transfers in 274 045 274,045 274,045 G
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and
other financing sources {ses) $0 30 $3,653 $3,653
Budgetary - GAAP Reporting Reconciliation:
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and

other financing sources (uses) $3,653
Adjustments for revenue accruals 0
Adjustments for expenditures accruals 0
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources

over expenditures and other financing uses {CAAP Basis) $3,653

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
SENIOR COMPANION PROGRAM FUND
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL (CASH BASIS)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Original Final Favorable
Approved Approved {Unfavorable)
Budget Budget Actual Variance
REVENUES
Intergovernmental $94,838 $94,838 $84,940 ($9,898)
EXPENDITURES
Personnel 22,604 22,604 22,820 {216)
Operating 65,234 65,234 64,873 361
Capital outlay 0 0 0 0
Total expenditures 87,838 87,838 87,693 145
Excess {deficiency) of revenuas over expenditures 7.000 7,000 {2,7563) {9,753)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Operating transfers in 12,000 12,000 ) (12,000)
Operating transfers (out) (12,000) {12,000) 0 12,000
Total other financing sources {(uses) 0 0 0 0
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and
other financing sources (uses) $7,000 $7,000 {$2,753) ($9,753)
Budgetary - GAAP Reporting Reconciliation:
Excess {deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and
other financing sources {uses) ($2,753)
Adjustments for revenue accruals 225
Adjustments for expenditures accruals 0
Excess {deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources
over expenditures and other financing uses (GAAP Basis) ($2,628)

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
SENIOR EMPLOYMENT PROGRAM FUND
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL (CASH BASIS)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

QOriginal Final Favorable
Approved Approved {Unfavorable)
Budget Budget Actual Variance
REVENUES
Intergovernmental $33,460 $33,460 $32,032 {81,428)
EXPENDITURES
Personnel 30,460 33,460 32,804 656
Operating 0 0 260 {260)
Total expenditures 30,460 33,460 33,064 396
Excess {deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 3,000 0 {1,032) (1,032)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Operating transfers in 6,000 6,000 0 (8,000)
Operating transfers {out) (6,000) {6,000} 0 6,000
Total other financing sources (tises) 0 0 0 0
Excess {deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and
other financing sources (uses) $3,000 %0 {$1,032) ($1,032)
Budgetary - GAAP Reporting Reconcillation:
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and
other financing sources (Uses) ($1,032)
Adjustments for revenue accruals 1,048
Adjustments for expenditures accruals (801)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources
over expenditures and other financing uses (GAAP Basis) ($785)

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS

SPECIAL LIBRARY DONATION FUND
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL (CASH BASIS)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Original Final Favorable
Approved Approved (Unfavorable)
Budget Budget Actual Variance

REVENUES
Donations $500 $500 $1,125 $625
Interest on investments 200 200 239 39

Total revenuss 700 700 1,364 664
EXPENDITURES
Personnel 0 0 0 0
Operating 3,500 3,500 51 3,449
Capital outlay 5,000 5,000 0 5,000

Total expenditures 8,500 8,500 51 8,449
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (7,800) (7,800) $1,313 $9,113
Budgeted cash carryover 7,800 7.800

$0 30

Budgetary - GAAP Reporting Recongiliation:
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and

other financing sources (uses) $1,313
Adjustments for revenue accruals 0
Adjustments for expenditures accruals 0
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources

over expenditures and other financing uses (GAAP Basis) $1,313

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
STATE AND LOCAL NARCOTICS ASSISTANCE CONTROL PROGRAM FUND
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL (CASH BASIS)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Criginal Final Favorable
Approved Approved {Unfavorable)
Budget Budget Actual Variance
REVENUES
Intergovernmental $65,000 $65,000 $0 ($65,000)
Miscellaneous 0 0 0 0
Total revenues 65,000 65,000 0 (65,000}
EXPENDITURES
Personnel 60,000 60,000 0 60,000
Operating 5,000 5,000 0 5,000
Capitat outlay 0 0 0 0
Total expenditures 65,000 65,000 0 65,000
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 30 $0 50 $0
Budgetary - GAAP Reporting Reconciliation:
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and
other financing sources (uses) $0
Adjustments for revenue accruals 32,595
Adjustments for expenditures accruals 0
Excess {deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources
over expenditures and other financing uses (GAAP Basis) $32,595

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2009

Debt Service Funds

Debt Service Funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, general long-term debt
principal, interest, and related costs.

Interest and Sinking Fund — To accumulate funds for payment of principal and interest.

GRT Revenue Bond Debt Service Fund 1993A — To accumulate funds for payment of refunding debt.

GRT Revenue Bond Reserve Fund 1993 A — To accumulate funds per refunding bond agreement to insure future payment.

NMFA Loan — To accumutate funds for payment of loan to be paid from proceeds of a statewide gross receipts tax
distributed by the New Mexico Taxation and Revenue Department.

NMFEA Reserve — To accumulate funds for payment of loan to be paid from proceeds of gross receipts tax.
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CITY OF GRANTS
NONMAJOR DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEETS
JUNE 30, 2009

G.0. Bonds GRT GRT
Interest and Revenue Revenue
Sinking Bond Bond
Fund Debt Service Reserve
ASSETS
Cash $0 $140,755 $0
Cash held with trustee 0 167,962 149,581
Total assets $0 $308,707 $149,581
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities $0 $0 $0
Fund Balance:
Reserved for debt service 0 308,707 149,581
Tolal fund balance 0 308,707 149,581
Total liabilities and fund balance $0 $308,707 $149,581

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
NONMAJOR DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEETS
JUNE 30, 2009

NMFA NMFA
Loan Reserve Totals
ASSETS
Cash $0 $0 $140,755
Cash held with trustee 106,945 66,175 490,653
Total assets $106,945 $66,175 $631,408
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities $0 $0 $0
Fund Balance:
Reserved for debt service 106,845 66,175 631,408
Total fund balance 106,945 66,175 631,408
Total liabilities and fund balance $106,945 $66,175 $631,408

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS

NONMAJOR DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

G.C. Bonds GRT GRT
Interest and Revenue Revenue
Sinking Bond Bond
Fund Debt Service Reserve
REVENUES
Taxes %0 $o $0
Investment income 5,145 1,473 1,874
Total revenues 5,145 1,473 1,874
EXPENDITURES
Debt Service:
Principal 0 125,000 0
Interest 0 20,348 0
Fees 0 1,868 0
Total expenditures 0 147,217 0
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 5,145 {145,744) 1,874
Other Financing Sources {Uses):
Cperating transfers in 0 147,549 0
Operating transfers (ouf) {(339,409) 0 {2,201)
Total other financing sources (uses) (339,409) 147,549 (2,201)
Net changes in fund balances (334,264) 1,805 {327)
Fund balance, beginning of year 334,264 306,902 149,908
Fund balance, end of year $0 $308,707 $149,581

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS

NONMAJOR DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

NMFA NMFA
Loan Reserve Totals

REVENUES
Taxes $0 $0 $0
Investment income 1,543 3,026 13,061

Total revenues 1,543 3,926 13,961
EXPENDITURES
Debt Service:
Principal 39,100 0 164,100
Interest 26,217 0 46,565
Fees 1,394 0 3,263

Total expenditures 66,711 0 213,828
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (65,168) 3,926 (199,967)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Operating transfers in 73,722 0 221,271
Operating transfers {ouf) 0 {3,916) {345,526)

Total other financing sources (uses) 73,722 {3,9186) {124,255)
Net changes in fund bafances 8,554 10 (324,222)
Fund batance, beginning of year 98,391 66,165 955,630
Fund balance, end of year $106,945 $66,175 $631,408

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
INTEREST AND SINKING FUND
DEBT SERVICE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL (CASH BASIS)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Original Final Favorable
Approved Approved {Unfavorable)
Budget Budget Actual Variance
REVENUES
Intergovernmental $0 $0 $0 $0
Interest on investmenis 10,000 12,000 5,145 {6,855)
Total revenues 10,000 12,000 5,145 (6,855)
EXPENDITURES
Interest 5,000 0 0 0
Fees 0 0 0 0
Total expenditures 5,000 0 0 0
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 5,000 12,000 5,145 (6,855)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Operating transfers in 0 0 0 0
QOperating transfers {ouf) 0 (346,263) {339,409) 6,854
Total other financing sources (uses) 0 {346,263) (339,409) 6,854
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and
other financing sources (uses) $5,000 (334,263)  ($334,264) {($1)
Budgeted cash carryover 334,263
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and
other financing sources {uses) $0
Budgetary - GAAP Reporting Reconciliation:
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and
other financing sources (uses) ($334,264)
Adjustments for revenue accruals 0
Adjustrments for expenditures accruals 0
Excess {deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources
over expenditures and other financing uses {(GAAP Basis) {$334,264)

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
GRT REVENUE BOND DEBT SERVICE FUND 1993A
DEBT SERVICE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL (CASH BASIS)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Original Final Favorable
Approved Approved {Unfavorable)
Budget Budget Actual Variance
REVENUES
Interest on investments $0 %0 $1,473 $1,473
EXPENDITURES
Paying agent fees 4,000 4,000 1,869 2,131
Bond interest 20,349 20,349 20,348 1
Bond principal 125,000 125,000 125,000 0
Total expenditures 149,349 149,349 147,217 2,132
Excess {deficiency) of revenues over expendifures (149,349) {149,349) (145,744) 3,605
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Operating transfers in 152,848 152,848 147,549 {5,299)
Operating transfers (out) 0 0 0 0
Total other financing sources (uses) 152,848 152,848 147,549 (5,299)
Excess (deficiency) of reventues over expenditures and
other financing sources (uses) $3,499 $3,499 $1,805 {$1,694)
Budgetary - GAAP Reporting Reconciliation:
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and
other financing sources {uses) $1,805
Adjustments for revenue accruals 0
Adjustments for expenditures accruals 0
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources
over expenditures and other financing uses {GAAP Basis) $1,805

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
GRT REVENUE BOND RESERVE FUND 1993A
DEBT SERVICE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL (CASH BASIS)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Original Final Favorable
Approved Approved {Unfavorable)
Budget Budget Actual Variance

REVENUES
interest $7.500 37,500 $1,874 (85,626)
EXPENDITURES
Management fees 500 500 0 500
Excess (deficiency} of revenues over expenditures 7,000 7,000 1,874 (5.126)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Operating transfers in 0 0 0 0
Operating transfers {out) (7,500) (7,500) {2,201) 5,299

Total other financing sotrces (uses) {7,500) (7,500) (2,201) 5,299
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expendifures and
other financing sources {uses) (500) (500) ($327) $173
Budgeted cash carryover 500 500
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and
other financing sources (Lises) $0 $0
Budgetary - GAAP Reporting Reconciliation:
Excess (deficiency} of revenues over expenditures and

other financing sources {uses) ($327)
Adjustments for revenue accruals 0
Adjustments for expenditures accruals 0
Excess {deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources

over expenditures and other financing uses (GAAP Basis) ($327)

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
NMFA LOAN FUND
DEBT SERVICE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL (CASH BASIS)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

QOriginal Final Favorable
Approved Approved {Unfavorable)
Budget Budget Actual Variance

REVENUES
interest $0 $0 $1,543 $1,543
EXPENDITURES
Principal 39,100 39,100 39,100 0
Interest 26,217 26,217 26,217 0
Fees 2,000 2,000 1,394 606

Total expenditures 67,317 67,317 66,711 606
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (67,317) (67,317) {65,168) 2,149
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Operating transfers in 74,807 74,807 73,722 {1,085)
Excess (deficiency) of reventies over expenditures and
other financing sources (Uses) $7,490 $7,490 $8,554 $1,064
Budgetary - GAAP Reporting Reconciliation;
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and

other financing sources {uses) $8,554
Adjustments for revenue accruals 0
Adjustments for expenditures accruals 0
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources

over expenditures and other financing uses (GAAF Basis) $8,654

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
NMFA RESERVE FUND
DEBT SERVICE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL (CASH BASIS)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Original Final Favorable
Approved Approved (Unfavorable)
Budget Budget Actual Variance

REVENUES ‘
Interest on investments $5,000 $5,000 $3,926 ($1,074)
EXPENDITURES
Principal 0 0 0 0
Interest 0 0 0 0
Feeos 0 0 0 0

Total expenditures 0 0 0 0
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 5,000 5,000 3,926 {1,074)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Operating transfers (out) {5,000) {5,000) {(3,916) 1,084
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and
other financing sources (uses) $0 $0 $10 $10
Budgetary - GAAP Reporting Reconciliation:
Excess {deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and

other financing sources {uses) $10
Adjustments for revenue accruals 0
Adjustments for expenditures accruals 0
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources

over expenditures and ofher financing uses (GAAP Basis) $10

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS

TOTAL ALL NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 2009

Special Debt
Revenue Service Total
ASSETS
Cash $616,220 $140,755 $756,975
Cash held with frustee 0 490,653 490,653
Accounts receivable 131,450 0 131,450
Grant revenue receivable 0 0 0
Due from other funds 3,755 0 3,765
Other deferred charges 0 0 0
Total assets $751,425 $631,408 $1,382,833
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $9,321 30 $9,321
Accrued payroll 3,608 ] 3,608
Deferred revenue G H 0
Due to other funds 31,682 ¢ 31,682
Total lfabilities 44,611 0 44,691
Fund Balances:
Reserved for debt service 0 631,408 631,408
Unreserved, undesignated 706,814 0 706,814
Total fund balances 706,814 631,408 1,338,222
Total liabilities and fund balances $751,425 $631,408 $1,382,833

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.

-88-



CITY OF GRANTS

TOTAL ALL NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Special Debt
Revenue Service Total

REVENUES
Intergovernmental $810,344 $0 $810,344
Taxes 4,143 0 4,143
Lodgers' Tax 369,812 o 369,812
Fees 47,339 0 47,339
Invesiment income 9,024 13,961 22,985
Sales of property 16,390 0 16,390
Miscellaneous 33,720 0 33,720

Total revenues 1,290,772 13,961 1,304,733
EXPENDITURES
Current:

General government 326,048 0 326,048

Public safety 344,167 0 344,167

Public works 4,800 0 4,800

Health and welfare 591,837 0 591,837

Culture and recreation 51 0 51
Capital autlay 43,424 0 43,424
Debt Service:

Principal 0 164,100 164,100

Interest 0 46,565 48,565

Fees 0 3,263 3,263

Total expenditures 1,310,327 213,928 1,524,255
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures {19,555) {199,967) {219,522)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Operating transfers in 326,045 221,271 547,316
Operating fransfers {out} (324,045) (345,526) {669,571)

Total other financing sources (uses) 2,000 (124,255} (122,255)
Net changes in fund balances (17,555) {324,222) (341,777)
Fund balance, July 1 724,369 955,630 1,679,999
Fund balance, June 30 $706,814 $631,408 $1,338,222

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.



CITY OF GRANTS
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2009

Capital Projects Funds

Capital Projects Funds are used to account for financial resouices to be used for the acquisition or construction of major
capital facilities.

General Government Improvements Fund — Accounts for construction and improvement funds received from various
sourees for the improvement of City properties.
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CITY OF GRANTS
GENERAL GOVERNMENT IMPROVEMENTS

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL (CASH BASIS)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Original Final
Approved Approved Favorable
Budget Budget Actual {Unfavorable)

REVENUES
Intergovernmental $5,684,001  $5,684,001  $2,955,738 ($2,728,263)
Other 0 0 133,333 133,333
Rental revenue 17,250 17,250 18,920 - 1,670

Total revenues 5,701,251 5,701,251 3,107,991  (2,583,260)
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Capital outlay 7,304,968 7,129,968 4,192,869 2,836,999

Tolal expenditures 7,304,968 7,129,968 4,192,069 2,936,999
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (1,603,717) {1,428,717) (1,084,978) 343,739
Other Financing Sources {Uses):
Capital transfers {out} 0 0 0 0
Operating transfers in 700,600 700,000 700,000 0
Operating transfers {out) 0 0 0 0

Total other financing sources {(uses) 700,000 700,000 700,000 0
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures
and other financing sources (uses) {903,717} {728,717y  (5384,878)  $343,739
Budgeted cash carryover 803,717 728,717

30 $0

Budgetary - GAAP Reporting Reconclliation:
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and

other financing sources (uses) ($384,978)
Adjustments for revenue accruals 099,566
Capital fransfers out (1,608,571)
Adjustments for expenditures accruals 1,443,825
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources

over expenditures and other financing uses (GAAP Basis) ($448,158)

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
ENTERPRISE FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2009
PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES

Enterprise Funds

Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business
enterprises where the intent of the governing body is that the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or
services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges.

Golf Course Operating Fund — To account for the operation of the municipal golf course,

Home Program — A HUD-funded program passed through the New Mexico Mortgage Finance Authority. The program is
designed to provide decent, safe, and sanitary housing for eligible low-income families and the elderly.

Low Rent — A direct HUD-funded program designed to provide decent, safe and sanitary housing and related facilities for

eligible low-income families and the elderly through an authorized Public Housing Authority (PHA) or Indian Housing
Authority (IHA).
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CITY OF GRANTS

NONMAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEETS

JUNE 30, 2009

Golf Home
Course Program Low Rent Total
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $68,232 $4,929 $27,781 $100,942
Investments 0 211,808 0 211,808
Accounts receivable tenants (net of allowance) 0 0 4,899 4,899
Accounts receivable 21,703 0 24,319 46,022
Interest receivable 0 177 0 177
Prepaid insurance 0 0 0 0
Other deferred charges 0 0 0 0
Due from other funds 0 0 34,199 34,199
Total current assefs 89,935 216,914 91,198 398,047
Resfricted Assets:
Customer Deposits: 0 0 0 0
Cash and cash equivalents 0 0 0 0
Total restricted assets 0 0 0 0
Capital Assets 1,837,943 4,721 1,188,243 3,030,907
Less accumulated depreciation (777,665) {4,546) (539,210)  (1,321,421)
Net capital assets 1,060,278 175 649,033 1,709,486
Total assets $1,150,213 $217,089 $740,231 $2,107,533
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable $2,200 $136 $13,230 $15,566
Accrued payroll 15,612 200 3,749 19,561
Due to other funds 0 27,072 0 27,072
Deferrod revenue 0 0 0 0
Tenant security deposits 0 0 3,472 3,472
Tenants prepaid rent 4] 0 2,320 2,320
Current portion of long-term debt 45,859 0 0 45,859
Total current liabilities 63,671 27,408 22,771 113,850
Non-Current Liabilities:
Accrued compensated absences 34,999 461 3,841 39,301
Leases payable 0 0 0 0
Total noncurrent liabilities 34,999 461 3,841 39,301
Total liabilities 98,670 27,869 26,612 153,151
Net Assets:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 1,014,419 175 649,033 1,663,627
Unrestricted 37,124 189,045 64,586 290,755
Total fund net assets 1,051,543 189,220 713,619 1,954,382
Total liabilities and fund net assets $1,150,213 $217,089 $740,231  $2,107,5633

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.

-03-



CITY OF GRANTS

NONMAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENTS OF REVENUE, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Golf Home
Course Program Low Rent Total
OPERATING REVENUES
Golf fees $315,759 $0 $0 $315,759
Rental incoms 3,600 0 53,061 56,661
Total operating revenues 319,358 0 53,061 372,420
OPERATING EXPENSES
Operating expenses 547,065 6,928 99,737 653,730
Depreciation 68,818 64 34,425 103,307
Total operating expenses 615,883 6,992 134,162 757,037
Operating income {loss) (296,524) {6,992) {81,101) {(384,617)
NON-OPERATING REVENUE AND (EXPENSES)
Federal grants and subsidies 0 0 69,201 69,201
Interest earnings 0 7.098 265 7,363
Other 0 0 129 129
Total non-operating revenue and (expenses) 0 7,098 69,585 76,683
Net income (loss) before contributions and transfers {296,524) 108 {11,506) (307,924)
Operating transfers in 325,400 0 0 325,400
Capital transfers in 117,569 0 0 117,568
Change in net assets 146,445 106 (11,506) 135,045
Total fund net assets, at beginning of year 905,098 189,114 725,125 1,819,337
Total fund net assets, at end of year $1,051,543 $189,220 $713,619  $1,954,382

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS

NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Goff Home
Course Program Low Rent Total

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash received from customers (including other funds) $298,564 $0 $30,132 $328,696
Cash paid to suppliers {247,330) (692) (28,261) (276,283)
Cash paid to employees {293,708) {6,158) {56,130) {355,996)

Net cash provided (used) by operaling aclivities (242,474) {6,850) {54,259) {303,583)
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Advances (to) from other funds 0 6,850 {11,787) {4,937)
Transfers in {ouf) 325,400 0 0 325,400

Net cash provided by (used) by noncapital

firancing activities 325,400 6,850 {11,787) 320,463
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of property and equipment (1,859) 0 (469) (2,328)
Disposition of assets 0 0 0 0
Principal paid: revenue bonds/lease purchase/advances {58,529) 0 0 (58,5629)
Purchase of investment 0 {11,808) 0 {11,808)
Grants and subsidies 0 0 69,201 69,201
Other gain (loss) 0 0 129 129

Net cash provided (used) by capital and related

financing aclivities {60,388) {11,808) 68,861 {3,335)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Interest received 0 11,808 265 12,073
Net increase {decrease)} in cash 22,538 0 3,080 25,618
Cash and restricted cash, beginning of year 45,694 4,929 24,701 75,324
Cash and restricted cash, end of year $68,232 $4,929 $27,781 $100,942
Non Cash Transactions:
Capital assets transferred in $117,569 $0 $0 $117,569

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Golf Home
Course Program Low Rent Total
Reconciliation of operating income to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities
Qperating income (loss) ($296,524) ($6,992) ($81,101)  ($384,617)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 68,618 64 34,425 103,307
Provision for uncollectible accounts 0 0 0 0
Change in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) Decrease in assets:
Accounts receivables (20,795) 0 {24,976) (45,771)
Due from/(to) cther funds 0 0 0 0
Inventories 0 0 0 0
Prepaids and deposits 0 0 0 0
Increase (Decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts and contracts payable (334) (66) 10,786 10,386
Wages payable 1,862 24 2,713 4,599
Compensated absences 4,499 120 1,883 6,502
Other deferred charges: Tenant deposits 0 0 (35) {35)
Tenants prepaid rent 0 0 2,046 2,046
Total adjustments 54,050 142 26,842 81,034
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities ($242,474) ($6,850) {$54,259) ($303,583)

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS

GOLF COURSE OPERATING FUND

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES
BUDGET (NON-GAAP) AND ACTUAL (CASH BASIS)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Original Final
Approved Approved Favorable
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
REVENUES
Golf course fees $250,000 $260,000 $293,942 $33,042
Rental income 0 0 3,600 3,600
Other 0 0 179 179
Total revenues 250,000 260,000 297,721 37,721
OPERATING EXPENSES
Personnel 357,142 357,142 289,778 67,364
Operating 308,065 308,065 310,025 (1,960)
Capital outiay 9,000 9,000 1,859 7,141
Total operating expenses 674,207 674,207 801,662 72,545
Operating income (loss) {424,207} {414,207) {303,941) 110,266
Non-Operating Revenue (Expenses)
Transfers in 325,000 375,000 325,400 {49,600)
Transfers (ouf) 0 0 0 0
Total non-operating revenue (expenses) 325,000 375,000 325,400 {49,600)
Net income (foss) after transfers {99,207) (39,207) $21,459 $60,666
Budgeted cash carryover 99,207 39,207
$0 50
Budgetary - GAAP Reporting Reconciliation:
Excess {deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and
other financing sources (uses} $21,459
Adjustments for revenue accruals 21,638
Capital transfers 117,569
Adjustments for expenditures accruals {14,221)
Excess (deficlency) of revenues and other financing sources
over expenditures and other financing uses (GAAP Basis) $146,445

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
HOME PROGRAM
ENTERPRISE FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES
BUDGET (NON-GAAP) AND ACTUAL {CASH BASIS)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Original Final
Approved Approved Favorable
Budget Budgst Actual {Unfavorable)
REVENUES
Rental income $0 $0 $0 $0
Interest on investments G 0 7,088 7,008
Miscellaneous income 0 0 0 0
Gain {loss) on sale of assels 0 0 0 0
Total revenues 0 0 7,098 7,098
OPERATING EXPENSES
Personnel 0 0 0 0
Operating 0 0 6,928 {(6,928)
Tolal operating expenses 0 0 6,928 (6,928)
Operating income (loss) $0 50 $170 $170
Note: Project Home - sale of housing units Is not a budgeted program per HUD.
Budgetary - GAAP Reporting Reconciliation:
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and
other financing sources (uses) $170
Adjustments for revenue accruals 0
Adjustmentis for expenditures accruals and depreciation (64)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources
over expenditures and other financing uses (GAAP Basis) $106

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS

LOW RENT

ENTERPRISE FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES
BUDGET (NON-GAAP) AND ACTUAL (CASH BASIS)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Original Final
Approved Approved Favorable
Budget Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
REVENUES
Rental income $31,410 $31,410 $51,301 $19,891
Total revenues 31,410 31,410 51,301 19,801
OPERATING EXPENSES
Personnel 60,020 60,020 68,535 (8,515)
Operating 37,050 37,050 31,198 5,852
Capital outlay 0 0 0 0
Total operaling expenses 97,070 97,070 99,733 (2,663)
Operating income {loss) (65,660) (65,660) (48,432) 17,228
Non-Operating Revenue (Expenses)
HUD grants and subsidy 59,760 59,760 69,201 9,441
Interest 120 120 265 145
Cther 1,000 1,000 1,889 889
Transfers in 0 0 0 0
Total non-operating revenue (expenses) 60,880 60,880 71,355 10,475
Net income (loss) affer non-operating revenue (4,780) (4,780) $22,923 $27,703
Budgeted cash carryover 4,780 4,780
$0 80
Note: The budget is used only as a guideline and is not required by HUD to be amended.
Budgetary - GAAP Reporting Reconciliation:
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and
other financing saurces (uses) $22,923
Adjustments for revenue accruals 0
Adiustments for expenditures accruals and depreciation (34,429)
Excess {deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources
over expenditures and other financing uses (GAAP Basis) ($11,506)

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS

UTILITIES
ENTERPRISE FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL (CASH BASIS)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Original Final
Approved Approved Favorable
Budget Budget Actual {Unfavorable)

REVENUES
Refuse collection $1,225,000 $1,225,000 $1,574,230 $349,230
Water sales (net) 1,459,000 1,459,000 1,831,877 372,877
Sewer charges 1,675,000 1,575,000 1,704,272 129,272
Total government fax 213,750 213,750 284,851 51,101
Other 80,000 80,000 119,605 39,605

Total revenues 4,652,750 4,652,750 5,494,835 942,085
OPERATING EXPENSES
Public works 3,888,779 3,928,778 3,973,569 (44,791)
Capital outlay 385,000 485,000 16,831 468,169

Tofal opsrating expenses 4.273,779 4,413,778 3,990,400 423,378

Operating income (loss) 278,971 138,972 1,504,435 1,365,463
Non-Operating Revenue (Expenses)
Interest income 33,500 33,500 34,589 1,089
Transfers in 957,755 1,007,755 1,020,316 12,561
Transfers {out) {1,386,005) (1,486,005} (1,432,966) 53,039
Interest expense {450,260) (450,260) {450,260) 0
Principal payments {92,862) {92,862) (90,861) 2,001
Debt service fees (4,500) (4,500) {1,562) 2,938
Set aside - NMED 0 0 0 0
Reserve (408,680) {408,680) 0 408,680

Total non-operating revenue (expenses) (1,351,052} (1,401,052} {920,744) 480,308

Net income (loss) (1,072,081) (1,262,080) $583,691  $1,845,771
Budgeted cash carryover 1,072,081 1,262,080

$0 $0

Budgetary - GAAP Reporting Reconciliation:
Excess {deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and

other financing sources (uses) $583,691
Adjustments for revenue accruals 9,825
Capital transfers in {out) - net 1,489,002
Adjusiments for expendifures accruals {552,876)
Excess {deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources

over expenditures and other financing uses (GAAP Basis) $1,520,642

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION



CITY OF GRANTS
AGENCY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2009

FIDUCIARY FUND TYPES

Agency Funds

Agency Funds are used to account for assets held by the City as an agent for individuals, private organizations, other
governments, or other funds. Agency Funds are custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve measurement
of results of operations.

Appearance Bond Fund - To account for collection and payments of Appearance Bonds from individuals arrested or cited
by City Police.

Senior Citizens — T'o account for funds raised by members of the City of Grants Senior Citizen Organization to be used by
and for Senior Citizen functions.

-101-



CITY OF GRANTS
ALL AGENCY FUNDS
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Balance Balance
June 30, 2008 Increase Decrease  June 30, 2009
Appearance Bond Fund:
Assets
Petty cash $500 $0 $0 $500
Cash in bank 19,971 41,539 39,877 21,833
$20,471 $41,539 $39,677 $22,333
Liabilities
Deposits held for others $20,471 $41,539 $39,677 $22.333
Senior Activity Account:
Assets
Cash in bank $3,301 $4,334 $4,672 $2,963
Liabilities
Funds held for Seniors $3,301 $4,334 $4,672 $2,963
Total Agency Funds;
Assets
Petty cash $500 $0 $0 $500
Cash in hank 23,772 45,873 44,349 24,796
Total assets $24,272 $45,873 344,349 $25,296
Liabilities
Deposits held for others $24,272 $45,873 $44,349 $25,296

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS

SCHEDULE OF JOINT POWERS AGREEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Total Revenues
Estimated and

Responsible Parly Beginning and Amount of Confribution Audit Expenditures
Participants for Operations EBesceiptions Ending dates Project 6/30/2009 Responsibility Reported on:
City of Grants MW New Mexico  Solid waste disposal July 1, 2008 NW NM REV: NW NMSW
NW Mew Mexico Solid Waste services. June 30, 2009 N/A $8,816  Solid Waste EXP: City of Grants
Solid Waste Authority
Authority
City of Grants Village of Milan Qperation of Public Transit  September 1, 2006 N/A $0 Village of Milan  REV:Village of Milan
County of Cibota System and Cibola County
Village of Mitan Cenlinuing Zia Bus Safes

EXP:City of Grants

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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ADDITIONAL FEDERAL INFORMATION



CITY OF GRANTS

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Federal
CFDA
Number Accrued or Accrued or
of (Deferred) (Deferred)
Agency Project Award Revenue at Revenue at
Federal Grantos/Program Titie Prefix Number Arncunt June 30, 2008 Receipts Expendifures  June 30, 2009
U.5. Depariment of Agricuiture
Passed through State of New Mexico:
Passed through North Centrai
New Mexico Economlc Development District:
Area Agency on Aging Confract
Nutriticral Service Incentive Program 10.658 MNo. 2008-09 $23,047 $3,344 ($23,433) $23,047 $2,958

Total {1.S. Department of Agriculiure $23,047 $3,344 ($23.433) $23,047 $2,058
U.S. Department of Befense
Army Corps of Engineers
Sec 595 Water Resources Development Act 12.x%x $1,007,587 $169,634 {$833,087) $663,453 50

Total U.S. Depariment of Agriculiure $1,607.587 $169,634 {$833,087) $663,453 S0
1.8, Department of Health and Human Services
Passed through North Central
New Mexico Economic Development District:

Special Programs for the Aging Titts 1l B 93.044 Coniract $40,342 50 ($34,715) $40,342 $5,627
Title 1 C 93.045 No. 3 31,840 650 {31,670} 31,840 820

Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services $72,182 $650 {§66,385) $72,182 £6,447
U.S. Department of Housing and
Urban Development
Passed through NM Dept. of Finance
and Administration
Community Davelopment Bock Grant -

Comprehensive Plan 14228  05-C-NR-|-1-G-62 30 50 $0 $0 50
Storm Water Drainage Impr. Program 14.288  07-CNR-I-01-G-36 300,000 [ ¢] 300,000 300,000
Direct Funding:

Low Rent Public Housing Operating

Subsidy - Housing 14.850 69,201 0 (69.201) 68,201 4]

Seclion 8 Rental Voucher Program -
Housing 14.871 392,863 {2,600) {390,975} 305,463 1,888
Public Housing Capital Fund 14.872 71478 0 {32,344} 56,663 24,318
Taolal U.S. Depanment of Housing and
Urban Development $833,542 ($2.600) ($492,520) $821,327 $326,207
Total Federal Financial Assistarnce $1,936,358 $171,028 {$1,415,425) $1,580,009 $335,612
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CITY OF GRANTS

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Federal
CFDA
Mumber Accrued or Accrued or
or (Deferred) {Deferred)
Agency Project Award Revenue at Revenue at
Federal Grantor/iProgram Tille Prefix Number Amaunt June 30, 2007 Receipls Expenditures  June 30, 2008
Grant revenue receivable {page 12) ($595,459 less state grant receivablos of $259,847) $335,612

$335,612

N/A - Not Available
Basis of Presentation:
The above schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of City of Grants and is presented on the accrual basis of accounting.

This information inx this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circutar A.133, Audits of State, Local Governments, and Non-Proiit Organizations,
Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of the basic financial statements.
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Balance Sheet

Cyan - Colored Cells are Self - Populating
Yellow - Colored Cells are Detail Links

Gray - Colored Cells are disallowed entry

Lm;;tem Description Total Projects | NMO030000001
11 Cash-unrestricted $24,300
112 Cash-restricted-madernization and development
113 Cash-other restricted
114 Cash-tenant security deposits $3472
1[5 Cash - Restricted for payment of current liability
100 Total Cash
121 Agcounts receivable - PHA projects
122-010 | Accounts reccivable - HUD other projects - Operating Subsidy
122-020 | Accounts receivable - HUD other projects - Capital fund $2,110
122-030 | Accounts receivable - HUD other projects - Other
122 Accounts receivable - HUD othei projccts
124 Account receivable - other government
125-010 | Account receivable - miscellancous - Not For Profit
125-020 | Account receivable - miscetlaneous - Partnership
125-030 Account receivable - miscellancous - Joint Venture
125-040 Account receivable - miscellangous - Tax Credit
125-050 Account receivable - miscellancous - Other
125-060 Other - Comment
125 Account receivable - miscellaneous
126 Accounis receivable - tenants $4,976
;. F206.1 Allowance for doubtful accounts - tenants -$77
126.2 Allowance for doubtful accounts - other
127 Notes, Loans, & Mortgages Reccivable - Current
128 Fraud recovery
128.1 Allowance for doubtful accounts - fraud
129 Accrued interest receivable
120 Total receivables, net of allowance for doubiful accounts
131 Investments - unrestricted
132 Investments - restricted
135 investments - Restricted for payment of current Hability
142 Prepaid expenses and other assets
143 Inventorics
143.1 Allowance for obsolete inventories
144 Inter program - due from 556,407
145 Assets held for sale
[ 150 Total Current Assets
\ 161 Land 546,724
162 Buildings $1,409,113
163 Furniture, equipment and machinery - dwellings 519,375
; 164 Furniture, equipment and machinery - administration $23,157
165 Leasehold improvements 525,544
166 Accumulated depreciation -$655,023
167 Constritction in progress
168 Infrastructure
160 Total capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation
171-010 | Notes, Loans, & mortgages receivable - Non-current - Not For Profit
171-020 Notes, Loans, & mortgages receivable - Non-current - Partnership
171-030 Notes, Loans, & mortgages receivable - Non-current - Joint Venture
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Balance Sheet

Cyan - Colored Cells are Self - Populating
Yellow - Colored Cells are Detail Links

Gray - Colored Cells are disallowed entry

Line Hem

Total Projects

No. Description ,
171-040 | Notes, Loans, & mortgages receivable - Non-current - Tax Credit
171-050 | Notes, Loans, & mortgages receivable - Non-current - Other
171-060 | Other - Comment

171 Notes, Loaus, & mortgages receivable — Non-current
172-010 | Notes, Loans, & morigages receivable - Non-current - past due - Not For Profit
172-020 | Notes, Loans, & morigages receivable - Non-carrent - Partnership
172-030 | Notes, Loans, & mortpgages receivable - Non-current - Joint Venture
172-040 | Notes, Loans, & mortgages receivable - Non-current - Tax Credit
£72-050 Notes, Loans, & mortgages receivable - Non-current - Other
£72-060 | Other - Comment

172 Notes, Loans, & mortgages receivable - Non-current - past due

173 Grants receivable — Non-current
174-010 | Other assets - Not For Profit
174-020 | Other assets - Partnership
174-030 | Other assets - Joinl Venture
174-040 | Other assets - Tax Credit
174-050 | Other assets - Other
174-060 | Other - Commnent

174 Other assets
176-010 Investment in Joint venture - Not For Profit
176-020 [ Investment in Joint venture - Partnership
176-030 | Investment in Joinl venture - Joimt Venture
176-040 Investment in Joint venture - Tax Credit
176-050 | Investment in Joint venture - Other
176-060 | Gther - Comment

176 Investment in joint venture

180 Total Non-ciurent Assets

190 | Total Assets

311 Bank overdraft

312 Accounts payable <= 90 days

313 Accounts payable > 90 days past due

321 Accrued wage/payroll taxes payable

322 Accrued compensated absences - current portion

324 Accrued contingency liability

325 Accrued interest payable
331-010 | Accounts payable - HUD PHA Programs - Operating Subsidy
331-020 | Accounts payable - HUD PHA Programs - Capital fund
331-030 [ Accounts payable - HUD PHA Programs - Other

331 Accounts payable - HUD PHA Programs

132 Accounts payable - PHA Projects

333 Accounts payable - other government

341 Tenant security deposits
342-010 | Deferred revenue - Operating Subsidy
342-020 | Deferred revenue - Capital fund
342-030 | Deferred revenue - Other

342 Deferred revenue
343-010 | CFFP
343-020 [ Capital Projects/ Mortgage Revenue

343 Current pertion of long-term debt - capital projects/mortgage revenue bonds

344 Current portion of long-term debt - operating borrowings
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Balance Sheet

- Cyan - Colored Cells are Seif - Populating

Yellow - Colored Cells are Detail Links

Gray - Colored Cells are disallowed entry

Line Ifem

Total Projects

NM030000001

No. Description
345 Other current liabilities
346 Accrucd liabilities - other
347 Inter program - due to
348-010 | Loan liability - current - Not For Profit
348-020 Loan liability - current - Partnership
348-030 | Loan liability - current - Joint Venture
348-040 | Loan liability - current - Tax Credit
348-050 Loan liability - current - Other
348-060 | Other - Comment
348 Loan liability - current
310 Total Current Liabilities
351-010 Long-term debt - CFFP
351-020 | Long-term: - Capital Projects/ Morigage Revenue
351 Capital ProJects/ Mortgage Revenue Bonds
352 Long-term debt, net of current - operating borrowings
353 Non-current Habilities - other
354 Accrued compensated absences- Non-current
355-010 | Loan Hability - Non-current - Not For Profit
355-020 | Loan liabilily - Non-currend - Partnership
353-030 | Loan liability - Non-current - Joint Venture
355040 Loan liability - Non-current - Tax Credit
355-050 | Loan liability - Non-current - Other
355-060 | Other - Comment
355 Loan liability — Non-current
356 FASB 5 Liabilitics
357 Accrued Pension and OPEB Liability
350 Total Non-Current Liabilities
300 | Total Liabilities
508.1 Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
S5t Restricted Net Asseis
512.1 Unrestricted Net Assets
513 Total Equity/Net Assets
600 | Total Liabilities and Equity/Net assets
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Income Statement

Cyan - Colored Cells are Self - Populating
Yellow - Colored Celis are Detail Links
Gray - Colored Cells are disallowed entry

+| Line Ttem

No,

Description

70308

Total Projects

Nel ienant rental revenue
70408 Tenant reveniie - other
705080 Total Tenant Revenue
76600-010 | Housing assistance payments
70600-020 | Ongeing administrative fees eamed
70000-030 | Hard to house fee revenue
70600-031 [ FS8 Coordinator
78600-040 | Actoal independent public accountant audit costs
J0600-050 | Talal prefiminary fees eamed
70600-060 | All other fees
70640-070 | Admin fee cafeulation description
70600 HUD PHA operating granis
10610 | Capital grants
70750 Management Fee
G720 Asset Management Fee
70730 Book-Keeping Fee
70740 Eront Line Service Fee
70750 Other Fees
TO700 Total Fee Revenue
70300 Other governmend grants
71100-010 | Housing Assistance Payment
| 71H00-620 [ Administrative Fee
T1100 Investment income - vorestricted
71200 Mortgage interest income
71300 Proceeds from disposition of assets held for sale
TE31¢ Cost of sale of assets
71400-010 | Housing Assistatice Payment
71400-020 | Administrative Fee
7H400 Fraud recovery
71560 Other revenue
TH600 Gain or loss on sale of capital asscls
72000-010 | Housing Assistatsce Payment
72000-020 | Adminisirative Fee
72000 Envesimend fncome - restricted
0000 Total Revenue
91160 Administrative sajaries
91200 Auditing fees
91300 Management Fee
91310 Book-Keeping Fee
91400 Advertising and Marketing
21500 Employse benefil contribwlions - adiministrative
91600 Office Expenses
91700 Eegal Expense
91500 Travel
918L0 Allocated Overitead
91904 Other
91000 Total Operating-Adininistrative
92000 | Asset Management Fee
92100 Tenani services - salaries
92200 Relocation Costs
92300 Employee benefit contributions - fenant services
92400 Tenant services - other
02500 Total Tenant Services
931K Water
93200 | Blectricity
93309 Gas
93400 Fuel
93500 Labor
23600 Sewer
93700 Empleyee benefit contdbutions - wtilities
93300 Other utilities expense

NMO30006001

Operating Capital Fund
Fund Program Program

$51,301

$68,201 $13,238

| $21,216]
5265
$1,889
341,822
515,138

53,378 51,272

$568 84,076

51,237

$2,236

£796
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93060

Total Utililies

$8,944

55,561

$1,116

86,714

$2,427

$57.064

94140 COrdinary maintenance and operations - labor

24200 Ordinary mainterzance and operations - materials and other
94300-010 | Ordinary Maintenance and Operations Contracts - Garbage and Trash Removal Contracts
94300-020 | Ordinary Maintenance and Operations Contracts - Heating & Ceoling Contracts
94368-030 | Ordinary Maintenance and Operations Contracts - Snow Removal Contracis
94308-040 | Ordinary Maintenance and Operations Contracts - Elovator Maintenance Contyacts
94300-050 | Ordinary Maintenance and Operations Contracts - Landscape & Grounds Centracts
943060-060 | Ordinary Maintenance and Operations Contracts - Unit Tumaround Contracts
24360-070 | Ordinary Maintenance and Operations Contracts - Electrical Centracts
94300-080 | Ordinary Maintenance and Cperations Contracts - Plumbing Contracts
94300-090 | Ordittary Maintenance and Cperations Contraets - Extennination Contracts
94300-100 | Ordinary Maintenance and Cperations Contracts - Janitorial Contracts
24300-1 10 | Ordinary Maintenance and Operations Contracts - Routine Maintenance Contracts
04300-120 [ Ordinary Maintenance and Operations Centracts - Misc Contracis

94360 Ordinary Maintenanee and Operations Contracts

24580 Employee benefit contribution - ordinary maintenance

94000 Totai Maintenance

55100 Protective services - labor

95200 Prolective services - other contract casis

95300 Protective services - other

95500 Employee benefit coniributions - protective services

95000 Total Protective Services

96110 Property Insurance

96120 Liability Insurance

96130 Workinen's Cotipensation

96140 All other Insurance

56100 Tatal Insurance Premiums

956200 Other general expenses

96210 Compensated absences

96300 Payanents in lisu of laxes

96400 Bad debt - tenant rents

96500 Bad debt - mertgages

GE600 Bad deb! - other

968G Severance expeise

6000 Total Other Generat Expenses

96716 Interest of Mongage {or Bonds) Payable

96720 Interest on Notes Payable {Shott and Leng Tenn}

96736 Amortizatien of Bond [ssue Costs

96700 Total [nterest Expense and Amortization Cost

96906 | Tatal Operating Expenses

97600 | Excess Revenue Over Operating Expenses

97100 Extraordinary inaintenance

97200 Casualty losses- Non-capilalized
97300-010 [ Mainstream 1 & 5 year
97300-020 | Home-Ownership
$7300-025 | Litigaiion
97300-030 | Hope IV
$7300-035 | Movitg to Work
97308-640 | Tenant Protection
97308-050 [ Al Other

57300 Housing assistance payments

97350 HAP Portability-in

97400 Depreciation expense

97500 Fraud losses

978300 Dwelling units rent expense

SO000 Total Expenses

10010 Operating transfer in

D20 Operating transfer out
10030-080 | Wot For Profit
10030-020 | Paetiership
10030-030 [ Joint Venture
10030-040 | Tax Credit
10030-056 | Other
10030-060 | Other - Comment

HOO30 Operating transfers from / to primary government

10040 Operating transfers from / to conponent unit

10070 Extraordinary iteis, net gain‘loss

10080 Special items, net gainloss
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10097 Tnter Project Excess Cash Transfer In

10092 Tuter Project Excess Cash Transfer Out

10093 Transfers belween Programs and Projects - in
10054 Transfers between Programs and Projects - out
10160 Total other financing sources {uses)

| 10000 | Excess (Beficiency) of Revenue Over (Unider) Expenses

[ 110286 | Required Annual Debt Principal Payments 4 | |

[ 11036 | Beginning equity 3339,674] $87,656]
j1350-010 | Prior period adjustments and comrection of errers - Editable
11040.020 | Pror pedod adjustments and correction of errors - Editable
11046-0390 | Prior period adjustments and correction of emors - Fditable
11040-04¢ | Prior period adjustments and correclion of errors - Editable
11040-05¢ | Prior period adjustments aid correction of erors - Editable
11040-060 | Prior period adjustments and correction of errors - Editable
11040-07¢ [ Equity Transfers 529,560 -529,560
11040-080 | Equity Transfers 522,957 -$22,957
11040-090 | Equity Transfers 27,424 -527,424
11040-F00 | Equity Transfers $22,209
11040-E10 | Equity Transters
11040 Prior period adjuslments, equity transfers, and correction of errors X A3
11170-001 [ Administrative Fee Equity- Beginning Balance
11170-010 | Administrative Fee Revenue
11178-020 | Hard te House Fee Revenue
11170-02] | F55 Coordisator Grant
11170-030 | Audit Costs
11170-040 [ Bwestment Income
11170-045 | Fraud Recovery Revenue
11170-050 | Other Revenue
18170:051 | Comment for Other Revenue
11170-060 [ Total Admin Fee Revenues
11170-080 | Total Operating Expenses
11170-090 | Depreciation
11170-095 [ Housing Assistance Portability In
1§170-100 | Other Expenses
F1170-101 | Comment for Other Expense
E1170-110 | Tolal Expenses
P 11170-002 | Net Administrative Fee
£1170-003 [ Adminisirative Fee Equity- Ending Balance
1070 Adbninistralive Fee Equity
[1180-001 | Housing Assistance Paymeats Equily - Begining Balance
F1T80-010 | Housing Assistance Payinent Revenues
[1180-015 [ Fraud Recovery Revenue
11180-020 [ Net Housing Assistance Payments
11180-021 | Conunent for Other Revenue
11180-025 [ Investment Jucome
11180-030 [ Total HAP Revenues
11180-080 | Housing Assistance Paymenis
[ E80-890 | Other Expenses
- HIT80-091 | Comments for Otlier Expenses
11180-100 [ Total Housing Assistance Payments Expenscs
H180-002 | Met Housing Assistance Payinenls
H1180-083 | Housing Assistance Payments Equity-Ending Balance
11180 Housing Assistance Paymients Equliy
H198-210 | Total ACC HCV Units
11198-220 | Unfunded Units
1190-230 [ Other Adjustments
11190 Unit Months Available 40
11240 Unit Mounths Leased 231
L 11270 | Excess Cash |
iE610 Land Purchases
§1620 Building Purchases 542,431
1630 Fumiture & Equipment-Dwelling Purchases
i 1640 Fumiture & Equipment-Administrative Purchases
1150 Leaseliold Itnprovements Parchases $994
OGO Infrastructure Purchases
13510 CFFP Debi Service Payments
13901 Replacement Heusing Factor Funds
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yvan - Colored Cells are Self - Populating
Yellow - Cotored Cells are Detail Links

Gray - Colored Cells are disatlowed entry

1 14,871 14.885
: . . . . Form.u]a
Line Descrintion Total Business Housing Choice Capital Fund
Fem No, pho Programs Activifies Vouchers - pHal .
Stinubus Grant

H1

Cash-unrestricted 516,764
H2 Cash-restieted-modeniization and developinent
113 Cash-other restricted 5131,392

114 Cash-tenand security deposits
15 Cash - Restricted for payment of current liability
100 Total Cash

124 Accounts receivable - PHA projeels
122-010 | Accounts receivable - HUD other projects - Cperaiing Subsidy
122-020 [Accounts receivable - HUD other projects - Capital fimd
122-030 | Accounts teceivable - HUD other projects - Other

122 Aceounts receivable - HUD other profects 51,888 $22,209
124 Accoust receivable - other government
125-010 | Account receivable « miscellanesus - Not For Profit
125-020 | Account receivable - miseellaneous - Pastaership
125-030 | Account receivable - miscellaneous - Joint Venture
125-040 [Account receivable - miscelianeous - Tax Credi}
125-050 | Account receivable - iisceltaneous - Other
125-060  [Other - Comment
125 Account receivable - miscetlancous
126 Accounts receivable - tenants
126.§ Allowanee for doubiful accounts - tenanis
£26.2 Allawance for doubtful accounts - ofher
127 Notes, Loans, & Mortgages Receivable - Current
128 Fraud recovery
128.1 Allowance for donbiful accounts - fraud
129 Accrued interest receivable
120 Tatal receivaldes, net of allowance for doubtind accounts
131 Investments - unrestricled $211,808
i32 Investmients - restricted
135 Investments - Restricted for payment of current liability
142 Prepaid expenses and other assets
143 Inventories
1434 Allowance for obsolete inventories
144 Enter pragram - due fron $3,755
1435 Assets lield for sale
150 Total Current Asseis
141 Lond
E62 Buildings
163 Fumiture, equipment aid machinery - dwellings $446
o4 Fumiture, equipment sid nachinery - adminisiration 54,275 58,514
165 Leasehold improvements
166 Accumulated depreeiation 54,546 -58,814
167 Construction in progress
168 Infrasimucture

160 Total capital assets, net of acenmulated depreciation

171010 |Nofes, Loans, & morgages receivable - Non-curgent - Not For Profit
171-020 |Notes, Loans, & tnorgages recelvable - Non-current - Partnership
171-830 | Notes, Loans, & morigages receivable - Non-current - Joint Venture
171-040 | Notes, Loans, & mortgages receivable - Non-current - Tax Credit
171-650  [Notes, Loans, & mortgages receivable - Non-current - Gther
171-660 | Other - Comment

E71 Notes, Loans, & mortgages receivable — Non-current

172-010 | Notes, Loans, & mortgages receivable - Non-current - past due - Not For Peofit

172-020 | MNotes, Loans, & meorigages receivable - Non-current - Partnership
172-030  [Notes, Loans, & mortpages reccivable - Non-cuerent - Joint Venture
172-040 | Notes, Leans, & mertpapes receivable - Non-cuerent - Tax Credit
172-050 | Notes, Loans, & mortyages receivable - Non-current - Other
172-060 | Other - Comment

172 Notes, Loans, & morigages receivable — Non-current - past due
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Cyan - Colored Cells are Self - Populating
Yellow - Colored Cells are Detail Links

Gray - Colored Cells are disallowed entry

1 14.871 14,885
Line Descrinti Total Business Housing Choice c F?;’T‘;:a d
Item No. escription Programs Activities Youchers- ,“I’? Al Hun
. - Stimulus Grant
173 Grants receivable — Non-cument
174-01¢ [Othes assets - Not For Profit
174-020 |Other assets - Partnership
174-030 | her assels - Joint Venture
174-040 | Oiher assets - Tax Credit
174-050  |Qther assets - Other
174-060  |Giher - Conument
174 Other asscls
176-010__|Investment in Joint venture - Not For Profit
176-020 _|Investment in foint venture - Parinership
176-03¢  |investment in Joint venture - Joint Venture
176-040 | Investment in Jeint venture - Tax Credit
176-050  [Investment in Joint veniure - Other
176060 |Other - Commient
176 Investiient i [oint venture
130 Total Non-eurrent Asscts
190 |Tulak Assels
L19; Bank overdraft
312 Agcounts payable <= 90 days 5123 51,764
383 Arcounts payable > 90 days past due
321 Acerued wage/payeoll taxes payable 5215 $322
322 Accrued compensated absences - current portion 5257 3380
324 Accrued contingency liability
325 Accrued interest payable
331-610 | Accounts payable - HUD PHA Programs - Operating Subsidy
331-020 | Accounts payable - BUD PHA Pregrams - Capital fund
331.030 | Aecounts payable - HUD PHA Programs - Other
3 Atcounts payable - HUD PIIA Programs
332 Accounts payable - PHA Projects
333 Accounts payable - other government
34 Tenant security deposits
342-010 | Deferred revenue - Operating Subsidy
342-020 | Deferred revenue - Capital fund
342-030 |Deferred revenue - Other
342 Belerved revenue
343-010 [CFFP
343-020 [Capital Projects! Mertgage Revenue
343 Current portion of long-term debt - capital projects/morigage revente bonds
344 Cumrent portion of long-lemt debt - eperating borrowings
345 Other current labilitics
346 Accrued liabilities - other
347 Inter program - due to 327,071 $10,882 $22,209
348-010 _|Loan liability - current - Not For Profit )
348-020 |Eoan liabilily - current - Partirership
348-030 |Loan fiability - current - Joint Venture
348.040  |Loan liabifity - current - Tax Credit
348-050 |[Loan liability - current - Other
348-060 | Other - Conunent
348 Eoan liability - current
30 Total Current Ligbilities
351-010  [Long-term debt - CFFP
351-020 |Lomg-term - Capital Projects! Mortgage Revenue
351 Capital Projects/ Mortgage Revenue Bonds
352 Long-tenn debt, net of current - operating borrowings
353 Non-current Habilities - other
354 Accrued compensated absences- Non-current 5204 $305
355-010  |Loan liability - Nor-current - Not For Profit
355-020 |Loan liability - Non-curcent - Parinership
355-030  |Loan liability - Non-cureent - Joint Venture
355-040 |Loan liability - Non-current - Fax Credit
355-050 |Eoan liability - Non-cuzrent - Other
355.060 | Other - Comment
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Cyan - Colored Cells ave Self - Populating
Yellow - Colored Cells are Detail Links

Gray - Colored Cells are disallowed enfry

1 14.871 14.885
Lin Total Business Housing Choice Formnula
l e - H i - h LN . )
Hem No. Description Programs Activities Vouchers | Copital Fund

Stimulus Grant

355 Loan liability — Non-current
356 FFASB S Liabilities
357 Acenied Pension and OPEB Liability
350 Total Non-current linbililies
300 |Total Liabilities
508.1 Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 5175
511.1  |Restricted Net Assels $131,393
512.1  |Unrestricted Net Assets $8
513 Total Equity/Net Assets
| 600 |T‘otal Liabilities antt Equlty/iNet assels
s dacome Stagement
78300 | Net tenant rental revenue
78400 | Temant revenue - other
70500 |Total Tenant Reverue
70600-010 |Housing assistance payments $352,520
70600-020 |Ongoing adminisirative fees earned $40,343
70600-030 |Hard to house fee revenue
T600-031 |FSS Coordinator
70600-040 | Actual independent public accountant audit costs
F0600-030 |Fotal pretimdnary fees eamned
T0600-060 | Al other fees
F0600-070 | Adintin fee caleulation description
10600 |HUD PHA operaling grants
[ 70810 [capital grants $12,209 |
70710 IManagement Fee
0720 |Asset Management Fee
70730 [Book-Keeping Fee
70740 [Front Line Service Fee
10750 |Other Fees
70700 [Total Fee Revenue
70800 |Other goveainent grants
71100-010 |Housing Assistance Payment
71100-020 | Administrative Fee _ 330
71100 |Investment income - vurestricted 57,098
71200 [Mortgage interest inconte
71300 |Proceeds from disposition of assets held for sale
71310 |Cost of sale of assets
71400-G10 |Housing Assistance Payment
71400-020 | Administrative Fee
71460 | Fraud recovery
71500 |Other revenue
71660 |Gain or loss on sale of capital assets
72000-01¢ |Housing Assistance Payment S1,371
72000-02¢ [ Administrative Fee
72000 |tnvestment income - restricted -
70600 | Total Revenue ;209
91160 | Administmative salares 54,128 $15,037
91200 [Auditing fees
9300 [Management Fee
91310 |Book-Keeping Fee
H400 | Advertising and Marketing
91500 [Employee benefit contributions - administrative 51,933 §6,653
91600 |Office Expenses §8,522
91700 |Ecgal Expense
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Cyan - Colored Cells are Self - Populating
Yellow - Colored Cells are Detail Links

Gray - Colored Cells are disallowed entry

b 14,871 14.885
Line Total Business Housing Choice Formula
il v . 1 .
ltem No. Desct iption Programs Activifies Vouchers ,‘?“'“““ Fund
: : Stimulus Grant

91800  |Travel

918310 |Allocated Overhead

91800 [Other

91060 | Total Operaling-Administrative

92060 | Asset Management Fee

92164 |Tenant services - salaries

92200 | Relocation Costs

92360 | Employee benefit coniributious - tenant services

92460 | Tenant services - other

92560 | Total Tenant Services

93100  |Water

93200 |Electricity

93300 |Gas

93400  |Fuel

53500 |Labor

03608 [Sewer

53700 |Employee beuefit contribulions - utilities

93800 | Other utilities expense

93G00 | Total Utilities

94100 | Ordinary maintenance and eperations - labor

94260 |Ordinary maintenance and operations - materials and other
94300-010 | Ordinary Maintenance and Operations Contracts - Garbage and Trash Removal Contracts
94300-020 |Ordinary Maintenance and Operations Contracts - Heating & Cooling Coniracts
94300-030 |Ordinary Maintenance and Operations Contracis - Snow Removal Contracts
94300-040 |Ordinary Mairtenance and Operations Contracts - Elevator Maiitenance Contracts
94300-050 [Ordinary Maintenance and Operations Contracts - Landscape & Grounds Contracts
94300-060 |Ordinary Maintenance and Operations Contracts - Unit Fumnaround Contracts
94300-070 | Ordinary Maintenance and Operations Contracts - Electrical Contracts
$4300-080 | Ordinary Maintenance and Operatiens Contracts - Plumbing Contracts
94300-690 | Ordinary Maintenance and Operations Contracts - Extermination Conteacts
34300- 190 | Ordinary Maintenance and Operatiens Contracls - fanitorial Contracts
94300-11¢ [Ordinary Maintenance and Operatiens Contracts - Reuting Maintenance Contracts
94300-120 [Ordinary Maintenance and Operations Contracts - Misc Coniracts

94366 [Ordinary Maindenance and Operations Contracts

94500 |Employee benefit contribution - ordinary maintenance

4000 | Totat Matuienance

95100  |Protective services ~ labor

95200 |Protective services - otlier contrct costs

85300 | Protective services - other

95500 |Employee benefit contributions - protective services

S5000 | Total Protective Services

26110 |Property nsurance

56120 |Liability Insurance

56130 |Workmen's Compensation

$6140 | Al Other Tnsuzmnce

96100 |Tetal Insurance Premiuins

96200 |Olher general expenses

262H)  |Compensaled absences 120

96300 |Payments in lieu of taxes

96100 |Bad debt - tenant rents

96500 |Bad debt - mortgages

96600  |Bad debt - ether

96800 | Severance cxpense
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2 Cyan - Colored Cells are Self - Populating
Yellow - Colored Cells are Detait Links

Gray - Colored Cells are disallowed entry

1 -14.871 14.885
: : . . . Formala
Line Descrintion Total Business Housing Choice Capital Fund
Ttem No. €scriptio Programs Activities Vouchers - '
Stimulus Grant
96600 |Totat Other General Expenses

96710 |Interest of Mortgage {or Bonds) Payable

96720 | Interest on Notes Payable (Short and Long Tenn}
96730 | Amortization of Bond Issue Costs

96700 | Total Intercst Expense ant Amortization Cost

| 96900 |Tufal()pcraﬁng Expenses

[ F7000 |E):cess Revenue Over Operating Expenses

57100 [Extraordinary maintenance
97200 [Casualiy losses- Non-capitalized
97300-010 [Mainstream 1 & § year
97300-020 |Home-Ownership
97300-025 |Litigation
97364-030 |Hope IV
97350-035 |Meving ta Work
97300-040 [Tenant Protection
97360-050 |All Other
97300 Housing assistance payments
97350 [HAP Portabitity-in
97400 | Depreciation expeuse
07500  |Fraud losses
97300 |Dwelling units rent expense
90000 Total Expenses

$335417

564 52

10016 [Operating transfer in
10020 [Operating transfer out

H030-010 |Not For Profit

£0036-020 [Partnership

H0030-030 |Joint Venture

F0030-040 |Tax Credit

10030-050 |Gtiier

10030-060 |Other Comment
16030 Operatlug transfers from / to primary government
£0040 | Operating transfers from / lo conipencnt unit
10070 |Extraordinary items, net gain‘loss
H080  [Special temis, net gain/ioss
10091 Inter Projeet Exeess Cash Transfer In
10392 |futer Project Excess Cash Transfer Qut
(0893 [Transfers between Programns and Projects - it
10094 [Transfers between Programs and Projects - out
1H00 | Total other financing sources (uses)

| 16000 |Exccss (Deficiency) of Revenue Over {Under) Expenses

$189,112] 5119,982] s¢]

| 11020 |Requir{:d;\nnual Debt Principal Payments

| 11030 |Buuimﬁngequity

11048-0H0 |Prior peried adjusiments and correction of errors - Editable
1 1048-020 [Prior period adjustments and comrection of errors - Editable
1 1040-030 | Prior peried adjustments and correction of errors - Editable
} F048-040 [Prior peried adjustments and correction ef errors - Editable
11040-050 |Prior peried adjustments and coerection of errors - Editable
1 E3EL060 |Prior peried adjustments and correction of errors - Editable
1 F340-070 |Equily Transfers
1t 1016-080 |Equity Transters
11040-090 fEquity Transfers
11040-100 |Equity Transfers
11040-110 |Equity Transters
11040 | Prior period ad]ustmients, equity transfers, and correcilon of errors

-$22,209

209)

[ 11170-001 [Administeative Fee Equity- Beginning Balance 37,417] ) |




: Cyan - Colored Cells are Self - Populating
Yellow - Colored Cells are Detaif Links

Gray - Colored Cells are disallowed entry

| 14871 - 14,885

i : . P Forminla
Line D dption Fotal Business Housing Choice | Capital Fund
Item: No, escrip Programs Activities Vouchers Stivulus Grant

11170-010

Administeative Fee Revetiue

11170-020

Hard te House Fee Revenue

11170-021

F§S Coordinater Geant

11176-030

Audit Costs

H176-0:40

Envesiment income

11176-045

Fraud Recovery Revenue

E1170-050

Other Revenue

FEE70-051

Comment for Other Revenue

E1E70-060

Total Admin Fee Revenues

F1170-080

Total Operating Expenses

E1170-090

Depreciation

FEE70-005

Housing Assistance Portability In

11170-166

Other Expenses

11170-101

Comment for Other Expense

1170-110

Totat Expenses

11170-662

Net Administrative Fee

11170-603

Administrative Fee Equity- Ending Balance

E1170

Adiministrative Fee Equily

11180-901

Heusing Assistance Payments Equity - Begining Balance

11180-019

Housing Assistance Payiment Revenues

11180-015

Fraud Recovery Revenue

11180-020

QOther Revenue

11180-021

Conument for Other Revenue

11180-025

Investment Income

11180-030

Total HAP Revenues

11180-080

Housing Assistance Payments

11180-090

QOthey Expenses

11180-091

Comments for Other Expenses

11 130-100

Total Housing Assistance Paynients Expenses

11180-002

Net Housing Assistance Paymenls

11180-003

Housing Assistance Payments Equity-Ending Balance

11180 |Housing Assistance Payments Equily
11190-210 |Total ACC HCVY Units
11190-220 |Unfunded Units
FEE90-230 [Other Adjustments
11190 [Unit Months Available
11210 |Unit ¥onths Leased
11270 |Excess Cash
1610 |Land Purchases
11620 [Building Purchases
11630 [Fumiture & Equipment-Dwelling Purchases
11640 |Fumiture & Equipment-Administmative Purchases
11650 [Leaschold Improvements Purchases
11660 Tmfrastruciure Puschases
13510 |CFFP Debt Service Paymenss
13961 |Replacement Housing Factor Funds

A76

-2%0
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KRIEGEL/GRAY/SHAW & CO., £.C,
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
TRADITIONAL YET PROGRESSIVE SERVICE SINCE 1962

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND
OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Mr. Hector H. Balderas, State Auditor and
The Mayor and City Couneil

City of Gran{s

Grants, New Mexico

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund,
the aggregate remaining fund information, and the budgetary comparison for the general fund and the combining and
individual funds presented as supplementary information of the City of Grants (the “City”) as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2009, and have issued our report thereon dated November 18, 2009. We conducted our audit in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of Ameriea and the standards applicable to financial
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City’s internal control over financial reporting as a basis for
designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control over financial reporting.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the preceding
paragraph and would not necessarily identify alf deficiencies in intermnal control over financial reporting that might be
significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. However, as discussed below, we identified certain deficiencies in
internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be significant deficiencies.

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the
normai course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect misstatements on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of conirol deficiencies, that adversely affects the City’s
ability to initiate, authorize, record, process, or report financial data reliably in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles such that there is more than a remote likelihood that a misstatement of the City’s financial
statements that is more than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the City’s internal confrol. We
consider the deficiencies described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs to be significant
deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting, findings 2009-01, 2009-02, and 2009-03.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in more than a

remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial staternents will not be prevented or detected by the City’s
internal control.
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Mr. Hector H. Balderas, State Auditor and
The Mayor and City Council

City of Grants

Grants, New Mexico

Page Two

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be significant
deficiencies and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all significant deficiencies that are also considered to be
material weaknesses. However, we believe that none of the significant deficiencies described above is a material
weakness.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our
audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed one instance of
noncompliance or other matters that is required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards and which is
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2008-03 and 2008-04.

The City of Grants’ responses to the findings identified in ouwr audit were described in the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs, We did not audit the City’s responses and accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

Thisreport is intended solely for the information and use of management, the City Council, the State Auditor, the New

Mexico Legislature, the New Mexico Department of Finance and Administration, and federal awarding agencies and
pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Kt (Gragy ) Shaco o, P.C.

Kriegel/Gray/Shaw & Co., P.C.

November 18, 2009
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KRIEGEL/GRAY/SHAW & CO., P.C,
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
TRADITIONAL YET PROGRESSIVE SERVICE SINCE 1962

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH
MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE
IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

Mr. Hector H. Balderas, State Auditor and
The Mayor and City Council

City of Grants

Granis, New Mexico

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of the City of Grants with the types of compliance requirements described in the U.S.
Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that are applicable to each of its
major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2009. The City of Grants’ major federal programs are identified in
the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance
with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the
responsibility of the City of Grants’ management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the City of Grants’
compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issucd by the
Compiroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-
Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that
could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence about the City of Grants’ compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures, as
we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.
Qur audit does not providé a legal determination on the City of Grants’ compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the City of Grants complied in all material tespects, with the requirements referred to above that are
applicable to each of its major federal programs for the vear ended June 30, 2009.

Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of the City of Grants is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal programs. In planning and
performing our audit, we considered the City of Grants’ internal control over compliance with requirements that could
have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the
purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s
internal control over compliance.
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Mt. Hector H. Balderas, State Auditor and
The Mayor and City Council

City of Grants

Grants, New Mexico

Page Two

A control deficiency in an entity’s internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or
detect noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that adversely affect the entity’s ability to
administer a federal program such that there is more than a remote likelthood that non-compliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program that is more than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the
entity’s internal control.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies that results in more than a
remote likelihood that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be
prevented or detected by the entity’s internal control.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the Hmited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be significant deficiencies
or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be
material weaknesses, as defined above.

Thisreport is intended solely for the information and use of management, the City Council, the State Auditor, the New

Mexico Legislature, the New Mexico Department of Finance and Administration, and federal awarding agencies and
pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Facegul ?7(,(/ fJhuce ~Co, P.C.

Kr 1cge]/Gray/ haw & Co., P.C.

November 18, 2009
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CITY OF GRANTS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

SECTION | - SUMMARY OF AUDITOR'S RESULTS

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Type of Aunditor’s Report issued: Unquatified
Internal Contrel Over Financial Reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified? Yes X No
Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered to be material
weaknesses? X Yes No
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? Yes X No
FEDERAL AWARDS
Internal Control Over Major Programs:
Material weakness(es) identified? Yes X No
Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered to be material
weaknesses? Yes X No
Type of Auditor’s Report issued on compliance for major programs; Ungqualified
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in accordance with
section 510(a) of Circular A-1337 Yes X No
Identification of Major Programs:
CEDA Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster
12.3xxx Sec 595 Water Resources Development Act
14.288 Community Development Block Grant —-
' Storm Water Drainage Improvement Program

14.871 Section 8 Rental Voucher Program

14.850 Low Rent Public Housing Operating Subsidy
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B Programs: $300,000.00
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditec? Yes X No
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CITY OF GRANTS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

SECTION I - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

CURRENT YEAR SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCIES:

2009-01 Pavout of Sick Leave

Statement of Condition — Public Safety employees are allowed to cash out sick leave in addition to working full regular
hours.

Criteria — Sick leave is intended to supplement the regular established work hours not enhance a fully worked pay period.
Cause — Unusual work hours and fill in hours when employee calls in sick.

Effect — The employees are cashing out sick leave otherwise not payable by policy. Potential exists for abuse in allowing
employees to supplement their pay.

Recommendation — The City should clarify the sick leave policy and apply the policy consistently.

Management’s Response — The City’s sick leave policies allow all employees to use accrued sick leave for absences
during scheduled work hours due to iliness, injury or medical appointments. Consistent with its policies, the City allows
Public Safety employees to use accrued sick leave for absences during scheduled work hours due to illness, injury or
medical appointments. The City will continue to monitor the use of sick leave by its Public Safety employees to ensure
compliance with City policies.
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CITY OF GRANTS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

SECTION Il -FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

CURRENT YEAR SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCIES (CONTINUED):

2009-02 Commission Appointed Comittees Expending City Funds

Statement of Condition — A Commission appointed committee is committing and expending City funds outside of the
purchasing system. The committee purchased plants in the amount 0of $6,358. Subsequently, the committee presented the
receipts to the City for payment.

Criteria — Good internal controls require that all purchases be made through the City’s purchasing system and that all
purchases are made by City persomnel.

Cause - The committee was inadvertently given authority to make purchases on behalf of the City by the Commission
Effect -- Potential for the committee to inappropriately commit City funds and violate procurement policies.

Recommendation — The Commission should revisit all ordinances that establish committees to ensure that they are
operating only in an advisory capacity and are not making commitments on behalf of the City.

Management’s Response -- The City of Grants will no longer allow the Committee to purchase items. Purchases willbe

done through the Accounting and Finance Purchasing department. The City will review all ordinances to ensure that ali
committees are acting in an advisory capacity only.

-124-



CITY OF GRANTS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

SECTION Il - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

CURRENT YEAR SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCIES (CONTINUED):

2009-03 Sole Source Not Documented

Statement of Condition - During our testwork of procurement, we noted one purchase (1 of 15) which was processed as
sole source but was not clearly documented.

Criteria — City procurement policy and procedures require a written explanation for sole source purchases as to the review
of the available sources and why there is only one source for the procurement.

Cause — Oversight,

Effect — Lack of clear documentation provides the potential for non-qualifying purchases to be accepted as sole source in
violation of procurement requirements.

Recommendation — All sole source purchases should clearly docunient the reasons for such prior to final approval. In
addition, we would recommend that the City maintain a log of all sole source and emergency purchases to provide

additional perspective and oversight to those purchases requiring special treatment.

Management’s Response — The City will maintain a log for all Sole Souwrce and Emergency purchases. The City currently
requires sole and emergency purchases documentation that is filed with the purchasing department.
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CITY OF GRANTS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

SECTION Il - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

CURRENT STATUS ON PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS:

2008-01 Lump Sum Payment to Emplovee — Not Part of Payroll

Resolved and not repeated.

2008-02 Disbursement Checks Post Dated

Resolved and not repeated.

2008-03 Terminated Employees Not Paid Within Five-Day Requirement

Repeated with modification.

Statement of Condition — Four terminated employees (involuntary terminations) were not paid their final pay within the
required five days. We tested fifteen terminations (5 resignations, 10 involuntary terminations).

Criteria — NMSA 1978 Section 50-4-4 says employers must be paid within five days from the day they are discharged.
Cause — Lack of timely communication between department and finance.
Effect — Potential for the employee to make a claim for additional compensation.

Recommendation — The City should establish and implement a policy that all forced terminations are to be paid within five
days of termination.

Management’s Response — The City of Grants will continue to work towards establishing a policy that will comply with

NMSA Section 50-4-4, The City currently has some difficulty with paying temperary summer recreational workers that
terminate through out the summer months in the required five days.
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CITY OF GRANTS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

SECTION Hl — FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

CURRENT STATUS ON PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS (CONTINUED):
NON-COMPLIANCE

2008-04 Budgeted Expenditures Exceeded

Repeated with modification.
Statement of Condition — The City exceeded its budget in the Low Rent Program (by $2,663).

Criteria - The budget provisions as stated in 6-6-6 NMSA 1978 require that expenditures at the fund level cannot exceed
budget expenditures.

Cause — The Housing Authority, although a part of the City, budgets in accordance with HUD requirements, which uses a
budget only as a guideline.

Effect — Noncompliance with New Mexico budgeting statues.

Recommendation — The City should adopt budgets and monitor and amend those budgets in accordance with New Mexico
State Statutes.

Management’s Response — The City of Grants will continue to montitor all budgets to ensure that there are no budgeted
fund amounts that are exceeded. The City currently reviews all budgets per funds.
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CITY OF GRANTS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

SECTION Il - FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

CURRENT YEAR FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS -
MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAM AUDIT:

None.

PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS -
MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAM AUDIT:

None.
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CITY OF GRANTS
EXIT CONFERENCE
JUNE 30, 2009

EXIT CONFERENCE:

The exit conference was held November 19, 2009 and was attended by the following:

From City of Grants:
Ron Ortiz, Councilman

Bob Horacek, City Manager
Michelle Lucero, Systems Analyst

From Kriegel/Gray/Shaw & Co., P.C.:

Debbie Gray, CPA, Sharcholder

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PREPARATION
Preparation of financial statements is the responsibility of management. Although, the City of Grants® personnel provided

significant assistance in the preparation, the statements and related footnotes were prepared by Kriegel/Gray/Shaw & Co.,
P.C.
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